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A  Mom, this is Jason. We are doing a 
science project together.

B Hi, Jason. I’m glad to meet you.

C  Hello, Mrs. Jackson. Thanks for letting us 
do our project here.

B You’re welcome.

A  엄마, 이 애는 Jason이에요. 우리는 같이 과학 숙제를 

하고 있어요.

B 안녕, Jason. 만나서 반갑구나.

C  안녕하세요, Jackson 부인. 여기서 숙제 할 수 있게 

해주셔서 감사해요.

B 천만에.

UNIT    NICE TO MEET YOU.I
 * Check Up p.07

 01 b  02 1.F  2.T  

 03 A  Mom, this is Jason. We are doing a science project together. 

  B  Hi, Jason. I’m glad to meet you.

  C Hello, Mrs. Jackson. Thanks for letting us do our project here.

  B  You’re welcome.

02

W  Mike, you talk a lot about your sister Mary. 
I’d like to meet her.

M   Sure, Laura. I can introduce you 
tomorrow. She’ll be home for summer 
vacation.

W  It must be exciting studying in another 
country.

M   She enjoys it. But, she does miss her 
family.

W  She’ll be so happy to see you again.

여  Mike, 넌 네 동생 Mary에 대해 이야기를 많이 하는구

나. 그녀를 만나보고 싶어.

남  물론이지, Laura. 내일 너에게 소개해 줄 수 있어. 여름 

방학이라 집에 올 거거든.

여  다른 나라에서 공부하는 건 분명 재미 있을 것 같아.

남  그녀도 재미있어 해. 하지만 가족을 많이 보고 싶어하지. 

여  그녀가 널 다시 만나면 정말 기뻐하겠다.

Vocabulary introduce 소개하다    vacation 방학    country 나라, 국가    miss 그리워하다, 보고 싶어하다 

01

M   Hi! My name is Max. I just moved into this 
neighborhood.

W  Hi, Max. I’m Samantha. It’s nice to meet 
you.

M  Nice to meet you, too. 

W  I’ve seen you playing soccer in the park. 
You play very well.

M  Thanks!

남  안녕! 내 이름은 Max야. 여기 이웃으로 방금 이사왔어.

여 안녕, Max. 난 Samantha야. 만나서 반가워.

남  나도 만나서 반가워.

여  공원에서 축구 하는 거 본적 있어. 아주 잘하던데.

남 고마워!

Check Up Scripts

move 이사하다    neighborhood 이웃Vocabulary



UNIT 1 | 3

Actual Test  1 ②    2 ⑤    3 ③    4 ③    5 ④    6 ⑤    7 ⑤    8 ②                   | p.08

Vocabulary cousin 사촌     tennis dress 테니스복     shorts 반바지

남 내 사촌 Sally를 만나본 적 있니?

여 아니, 없어. 그녀가 여기 있어?

남 응. 테니스 치고 있어.

여 오, 파란 테니스복 입은 소녀니?

남 아니. 그녀는 빨간 셔츠를 입고 있어.

여 하얀 반바지 입은 소녀 말이야?

남 맞아. 이리와 봐. 내가 널 그녀에게 소개해 줄게.

M Have you met my cousin Sally?

W No, I haven’t. Is she here?

M Yes. She’s playing tennis.

W  Oh. Is she the girl in the blue tennis 
dress?

M No, she’s wearing a red shirt.

W  The girl with the white shorts?

M Yes. Come on. I’ll introduce you to her.

1 

여  내일은 너의 새 학교에서 첫 수업이 있는날이지.

남 전 그냥 집에 있고 싶어요.

여 왜 그러니? 네가 새 학교를 좋아한다고 생각했는데.

남  좋아해요. 하지만 새 친구들을 사귀는 건 정말 어려운 

일이잖아요.

여 좀 겁나는 건 당연한 일이란다.

남  아무도 절 좋아하지 않으면 어떡하죠?

여  일단 네 자신을 소개해봐. 그러면 많은 친구들을 사귈 

수 있을 거란다. 

 ① 여 만나서 반가워, Jerry.

 남  나도 만나서 반가워.

② 남  엄마, 이 애는 Liam이에요. 옆 집으로 막 이사왔어요. 

 

 여 안녕, Liam. 이웃에 온 걸 환영한다.

③ 남 고마워. 나도 만나서 기뻐.

 여 제가 당신을 아나요?

W  Tomorrow is your first class at your new 
school.

M I just want to stay home.

W Why? I thought you liked your new school.

M I do, but it’s so hard to make new friends. 

W It’s natural to feel a little scared. 

M What if no one likes me?

W  Once you introduce yourself, you’ll make 
lots of friends.

① W  Nice to meet you, Jerry.

 M  Nice to meet you, too.

② M  Mom, this is Liam. He just moved in 
next door.

 W  Hi, Liam. Welcome to the 
neighborhood.

③ M Thanks. I’m happy to meet you, too.

 W Do I know you?  

2 

3 

Vocabulary science 과학    project 과제, 숙제

natural 자연스러운, 당연한     make friends 친해지다     scared 겁먹은, 두려운     what if ~면 어쩌지    
once 일단, 한번    disappointed 실망한    surprised 놀란    nervous 초조한, 불안한 

Vocabulary



4

Vocabulary next door 옆 집     welcome 환영하다 

④ 남 난 네 사촌을 어제 만났어.

 여 그래, 그녀가 널 공원에서 봤다고 이야기하더라. 

⑤ 여 Mike, 이 애는 내 여동생 Jane 이야.

 남 안녕, 학교에서 널 본 적 있어.

④ M I met your cousin yesterday.

 W  Yes, she told me that she saw you in 
the park.

⑤ W Mike, this is Jane, my sister.

 M Hi, Jane. I’ve seen you at school.

Vocabulary join 함께 하다, 합류 하다, 가입 하다    soon 곧, 머지 않아

남  안녕. 네가 Joan이니? 난 Jessica의 사촌, Ralph야. 

여  오, 안녕, Ralph! 그래, 난 Joan이야. Jessica가 네

가 우리랑 점심 함께 할 거라고 말해줬어. 만나서 반가

워. 

남 고마워. Jessica가 늦는 것 같은데.

여 맞아. 하지만 분명히 곧 여기 올 거야. 

남 기다리는 동안 시원한 것 좀 마시자. 

여 좋은 생각이야. 오늘 밖이 너무 덥더라.

M  Hi. Are you Joan? I’m Ralph, Jessica’s 
cousin.

W  Oh, hi, Ralph! Yes, I’m Joan. Jessica said 
that you would join us for lunch. Nice to 
meet you.

M  Thanks. I see that Jessica is late.

W Yes. But I’m sure she’ll be here soon. 

M  Let’s have something cold to drink while 
we wait.

W Good idea. It’s really hot out today.

4 

여 저희 아버지는 국제적인 회사에서 일하십니다. 우리는 

이사를 많이 다니지요. 처음에는 친구를 사귀기가 어려웠어

요. 전 수줍음이 많았거든요. 하지만, 저희 엄마는 제가 외향

적이 되어야 한다고 말씀하셨지요. 엄마는 제 자신을 사람들

에게 소개해야 한다고 말씀하셨어요. 이제 저는 전 세계에 

친구들이 있답니다. 한 번 인사를 하면 친구를 사귀기는 쉬

워집니다.

남 안녕하세요. 길을 잃으신 것 같은데요. 도와드릴까요?

여  그런 것 같아요. 전 이 학교에 새로 왔거든요. 영화 동아

리가 어디에서 모이는지 아세요?

남 물론이죠. 사실, 전 영화 동아리 회원이에요.

여 정말이요?

남 네! 제 이름은 Jordon이에요. 전 동아리 회장이에요. 

W My father works for an international 
company. We move around a lot. At first, it 
was hard to make friends. I was shy. But my 
mom said that I should be outgoing. She said 
that I should introduce myself to people. Now 
I have friends all over the world. It’s easy to 
make friends once you say hello.

M Hi, you look lost. Can I help you?

W  Maybe. I’m new at this school. Do you 
know where the movie club meets?

M  Sure. Actually, I’m a member of the movie 
club.

W  Really?

M  Yeah! My name is Jordon. I’m the club 
president. 

5 

6 

international  국제적인      company  회사     shy  수줍음이 많은     outgoing  외향적인, 사교적인     
all over the world  전세계에     say hello  인사를 건네다Vocabulary



UNIT 2 | 5

남 안녕하세요. 제 이름은 William Johnston 입니다. 전 

미국에서 살고 있어요. 제가 좋아하는 과목은 과학입니다. 

그것은 매우 재미있는 과목이에요. 전 또한 스페인어를 배우

고 있습니다. 전 스페인어를 좋아하지만, 그것은 어려워요. 

전 축구 하는 것을 정말 좋아합니다. 매주 토요일에는 친구들

과 함께 축구를 하지요. 경기 후에는, 우리는 모두 저희 집으

로 갑니다. 저희 어머니가 우리에게 피자를 만들어 주십니다. 

M Hello. I’m William Johnston. I live in the 
US. My favorite subject is science. It is a very 
interesting subject. I’m also learning Spanish. 
I like Spanish, but it’s difficult. I really love 
to play soccer. I play every Saturday with 
my friends. After the game, we all go to my 
house. My mother makes us pizza.
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Vocabulary lost  길을 잃은    club  동아리, 클럽    member  회원, 일원    president  대통령, 회장

subject 과목     Spanish 스페인의, 스페인어Vocabulary

남 실례합니다. 이 자리가 A3번인가요?

여 오, 죄송해요. 제가 가방을 옮길게요. 

남  감사합니다. 전 전에 부산에 한번도 가본 적이 없어요. 

가보신 적 있나요?

여 네, 여러 번이요. 거길 좋아하실 거에요.

남 이렇게 여행하는 것은 좀 비싸네요. 

여 하지만, 운전이나 기차 보다 훨씬 빠르잖아요. 

남 네, 사실이에요. 하지만 약간 초조하네요. 

여 괜찮으실 거에요. 긴 비행은 아니니까요.

M Excuse me. Is this seat number A3?

W Oh, sorry. Let me move my bag.

M  Thanks. I have never been to Busan 
before. Have you?

W Yes, several times. You’ll love it.

M It’s a little expensive to travel this way. 

W  But, it’s much faster than driving or the 
train. 

M Yes, that’s true. I’m a little nervous though. 

W It’ll be OK. It’s not a long flight.

8  

seat 자리, 좌석      several times 여러 번      expensive 값비싼      nervous 불안한, 초조한     fl ight 비행 
airplane 비행기      airport 공항     train station 기차역 Vocabulary

 * Check Up p.13

 01 b  02 1. No  2.No

 03 A Hi, Mr. Franklin. How are you doing today?

  B I’m just fine, Angela. How’s your mother?

  A  She’s very busy these days.

  B Please say hello to her for me.

  A I will. Take care, Mr. Franklin.

UNIT      HOW ARE YOU DOING?II



6

02

W  Mike! I’m so glad that you came home. 
How’s school?

M  It’s hard work, Mom. But, I’m getting good 
marks.

W  Good for you. How’s your friend, Sam 
doing?

M  He’s having a hard time. He doesn’t like 
living away from home.

W  That’s too bad. Give him my best wishes 
when you see him.

M  I will. Thanks, Mom.

여  Mike! 네가 집에 와서 정말 기쁘구나. 학교는 어떠니?

남 힘들어요, 엄마. 하지만 좋은 점수를 받고 있어요. 

여 잘했구나. 네 친구, Sam은 어떻게 지내니?

남  그는 어려운 시간을 보내고 있어요. 집에서 떨어져 사는 

것을 좋아하지 않거든요.

여 정말 안됐구나. 그 애를 만나면 내 안부를 전해주렴. 

남 그럴게요. 고마워요, 엄마.

01

M  Helen? Is that you?

W Darren! Hi, yes. How are you doing?

M  Great. How about you?

W I’m OK. Thanks. When did you get back?

M  Last week. 

W Oh, this is my stop. See you later, Darren.

M  OK. Good-bye.

남  Helen? 거기 너니?

여 Darren! 안녕, 맞아. 잘 지내니?

남 아주 좋아. 넌 어때?

여 나도 괜찮아. 고마워. 언제 돌아왔니?

남 지난 주에. 

여  오, 이번이 내려야 할 정류장이다. 나중에 봐, Darren. 

남 그래. 잘 가. 

Check Up Scripts

get back 돌아오다     stop 정류장, 정거장Vocabulary

mark 점수, 기록Vocabulary

A  안녕하세요, Franklin씨. 오늘 어떻게 지내셨나요?

B 잘 지냈단다, Angela. 어머니는 어떠시니?

A 요새 매우 바쁘세요. 

B 어머니께 안부 전해드리렴. 

A 그럴게요. 몸조심하세요, Franklin씨.

03

A  Hi, Mr. Franklin. How are you doing 
today?

B I’m just fine, Angela. How’s your mother?

A She’s very busy these days.

B Please say hello to her for me.

A I will. Take care, Mr. Franklin.

Vocabulary these days 요즘 

Actual Test  1 ②    2 ②    3 ⑤    4 ④    5 ④    6 ⑤    7 ③    8 ⑤                   | p.14
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Vocabulary driver 운전 기사     pay 돈을 내다, 지불하다

남 비가 정말 많이 오는구나. 아무 것도 안 보여. 

여 괜찮아. 운전 기사님이 길을 아시니깐. 

남 너네 집은 어디야?

여 두 블록만 더 가면 돼. 여기 기사님께 드릴 돈이야. 

남 아냐, 아냐. 내가 낼게. 

여  오, 고마워. 빨간 집에서 세워주세요, 기사님. 나중에 봐, 

Jerry.

M  It’s raining really hard. I can’t see 
anything.

W That’s OK. The driver knows the way.

M Where’s your house?

W  It’s just two more blocks. Here’s some 
money for the driver. 

M No, no. I’ll pay the driver. 

W  Oh, thanks. Stop at the red house please, 
driver. See you later, Jerry. 

1 

남  Jane, 네 남동생은 어떻게 지내니?

여 사실, 그리 잘 지내지 못해. 다리가 부러졌거든. 

남 그런 이야기를 듣게 되어 유감이구나.

여 좀 걱정돼.

남  걱정하지마. 괜찮을 거야. 

여 그가 어서 낫기를 바라고 있어.

M Jane, how’s your brother doing?

W Actually, he’s not very well. His leg is broken. 

M I’m sorry to hear that. 

W I’m a little worried. 

M  Don’t worry. He’ll be fine. 

W I hope he will get better soon.

2 

broken 부러진     worried 걱정하는Vocabulary

W Last weekend, I met a new friend. She 
is Australian. We are going to meet again 
next weekend. I have studied English for 
many years. But I’m a little nervous. I am not 
sure what to say when we meet again. What 
should I say to her when we meet again?

Vocabulary weekend 주말     Australian 호주인, 호주의

여 지난 주말에, 새 친구를 만났습니다. 그녀는 호주 사람

입니다. 우리는 다음 주말에 다시 만날 것입니다. 저는 수 년 

동안 영어를 공부했습니다. 하지만 좀 긴장됩니다. 우리가 

다시 만났을 때 뭐라고 말해야 좋을지 모르겠습니다. 우리가 

다시 만났을 때, 그녀에게 뭐라고 말해야 할까요?

3 

남 이봐, Sarah. 새로운 일은 어떠니?

여 정말 좋아. 하지만 직장까지 버스 타고 2시간 걸려.

남 와. 아마 아빠가 태워 주실 수 있을 거야. 

여 아냐. 나보다 일찍 일을 시작하시는 걸. 

남 아마 Jack 삼촌이 태워다 주실 수 있을 거야. 

여  좋은 생각이다. 삼촌 사무실은 우리 사무실에서 가깝거

든. 지금 당장 전화드려봐야겠다.

M Hey, Sarah. How’s your new job?

W  I really like it. But it takes me two hours to 
get there by bus.

M Wow. Maybe Dad could drive you.

W No. He starts work earlier than I do.

M Maybe Uncle Jack could take you.

W  That’s a good idea. His office is close to 
mine. I’ll call him right now.

4 



8

① 남 어떻게 지내니?

 여 잘 지내. 고마워. 넌 어때?

② 남 나중에 봐, Kate. 

 여 그래. Justin에게 내 안부 전해줘. 

③ 남 안녕, Carole. 새 직장은 어떠니?

 여 정말 좋아. 

④ 남 너희 아버지께 안부 전해드려 줘. 

 

 여 난 매우 잘 지내. 고마워. 

⑤ 남 너네 가족에게 안부 전해 주는 것 잊지마. 

 

 여 잊지 않을게. 다시 만나서 반가웠어.

① M  How’s everything?

 W Just fine. Thanks. How about you?

② M See you later, Kate. 

 W  OK. Say hi to Justin for me.

③ M Hi, Carole. How’s your new job going?

 W  I really like it.

④ M  Please give your father my best 
wishes.

 W I’m very well. Thanks.

⑤ M  Remember to say hello to your family 
for me.

 W  I won’t forget. It was nice to see you 
again.

5 

trip 여행     amazing 놀라운, 굉장한     post 붙이다, 게시하다     online 온라인상에, 인터넷에     
these days 요즘, 요새 

Vocabulary

여  Mathew, 안녕. 늦어서 미안해. 내가 탄 버스가 천천히 

움직였거든. 

남  안녕, Jennifer. 괜찮아. 나도 막 왔어.

 오늘 어땠어?

여 괜찮았던 것 같아. 넌 어땠어?

남   난 영어 시험을 봤어. 좀 어려웠지만, 잘 본 것 같아. 

여 잘됐다. 그런데 영화표는 가지고 있니?

남 물론이지. 인터넷으로 샀어.

W  Mathew, hi. Sorry I’m late. The bus I was 
on was slow.

M  Hi, Jennifer. That’s OK. I just arrived, too.
How was your day?

W  OK, I guess. How about yours?

M  I had an English test. It was a little 
difficult. But I think I did well.  

W  Good. Anyway, do you have the movie 
tickets?

M  Sure. I bought them online. 

7 

남  Teresa! 넌 가족들이랑 유럽에 있을 거라고 생각했는데. 

여 안녕, Frank. 그랬지. 지난 주에 돌아왔어.

남 와! 여행은 어땠니?

여 굉장했어. 내가 인터넷에 올려 놓은 사진들 봤니?

남 응, 봤어. 굉장하더라.

여 넌 요새 어떻게 지내니?

M  Teresa! I thought you were in Europe with 
your family. 

W Hi, Frank. I was. We got back last week.

M  Wow! How was your trip?

W  It was amazing. Did you see the pictures 
I posted online?

M  Yes, I did. They were great.

W How are you doing these days?

6 

job 일, 직장, 일자리     offi ce 사무실Vocabulary
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arrive 도착하다     library 도서관     movie theater 영화관     market 마켓Vocabulary

email 이메일     airport 공항     stay 머물다     drive 운전하다, 태워다 주다 Vocabulary

여 안녕, Miguel. 어떻게 지내니? 난 공항에서 이 이메일

을 쓰고 있어. 지금은 일요일이야. 난 월요일에 마드리드에 

도착해. 5일까지 우리 이모랑 삼촌이랑 있을 거야. 난 금요

일 밤에 바르셀로나에 갈 거야. 우리 언니가 그 다음 날 나를 

너희 집에 태워다 줄 거야. 몸 조심하고. 곧 보자.

W Hi, Miguel. How are you doing? I’m 
writing this email from the airport. It’s Sunday. 
I arrive in Madrid on Monday. I’m staying 
with my aunt and uncle until the 5th. I’ll be in 
Barcelona Friday night. My sister will drive 
me to your house the next day. Take care. 
See you soon.

8 

여 오, 좋은 생각이다. 이제 들어가서 앉을까? W  Oh, good idea. Can we go in and sit 
down now?

UNIT       HOW CAN I GET TO THE AIRPORT?III
 * Check Up p.19

 01 c  02 1. a  2. c

 03 A  We missed the bus! We’ll be late for school!

  B What time is the next bus?

  A 8:45.

  B That’s too late. How can we get to school on time?

  A We can go by subway.

01

 W I hate taking the bus to school. 

M I never take the bus.

W How do you get to school?

M  I asked my dad to drive me. But he said 
no. He said I need more exercise.

W Do you walk then? 

M No. I ride my bicycle to school now.

여 난 학교에 버스 타고 가는 게 정말 싫어.

남 난 절대 버스 안 타.

여 넌 어떻게 학교에 가는데?

남  우리 아빠께 태워다 달라고 부탁을 드렸지만, 안 된다고 

하셨어. 아빠 말씀이 난 운동이 더 필요하대.

여 그럼 넌 걸어가니?

남 아니. 난 이제 학교에 자전거를 타고 가.

Check Up Scripts

exercise  운동Vocabulary



10

Vocabulary miss 놓치다, 실패하다     subway 지하철

Vocabulary amazing 놀라운, 굉장한      travel (장거리) 여행하다, 이동하다     market 시장     pyramid 피라미드

Actual Test  1 ①    2 ⑤    3 ③    4 ②    5 ④    6 ③    7 ⑤    8 ②                   | p.20

남 제 여름 방학은 굉장했습니다. 전 저희 가족이랑 이집트

에 갔습니다. 먼저, 저희는 택시를 타고 공항에 갔습니다. 그

런 다음, 카이로까지 비행기를 타고 갔습니다. 공항에서 부

터 호텔까지 버스를 타고 이동했습니다. 그날 밤, 저희는 시

장을 걸어서 돌아다녔습니다. 다음 날에는 차를 타고 피라미

드에 갔습니다. 나일 강에서 배도 탔습니다. 결코 잊을 수 없

는 방학이었습니다.

M My summer vacation was amazing. I went 
to Egypt with my family. First, we went by taxi 
to the airport. Then, we took an airplane to 
Cairo. From the airport, we travelled by bus 
to our hotel. That night, we walked around 
the market. The next day we drove a car to 
get to the pyramids. We even went on a boat 
on the Nile River. It was a vacation that I will 
never forget.

1 

03

A   We missed the bus! We’ll be late for 
school!

B  What time is the next bus?

A  8:45.

B   That’s too late. How can we get to school 
on time?

A  We can go by subway.

A  우린 버스 놓쳤어! 학교에 지각하겠어.

B  다음 버스는 몇 시에 있어?

A  8시 45분.

B   너무 늦는데. 제 시간에 학교에 가려면 어떻게 가야 하

지?

A  지하철을 타고 갈 수 있어.

02

M   Excuse me. What time does the bus for 
Daegu leave?

W  It leaves at 11:00 a.m.

M   It’s five minutes from now. My friend isn’t 
here yet.

W  There’s one at 11:20.

M  Is there a bus leaving at noon?

W   Yes. Do you want to take tickets for the 
bus? 

M  Yes. Two tickets, please.

남  실례합니다. 대구로 가는 버스가 몇 시에 떠나나요?

여 오전 11시에 떠납니다.

남  지금으로부터 5분 후잖아요. 제 친구가 아직 여기 안 왔

는데요.

여 11시 20분에도 하나 있어요.

남  정오에 떠나는 버스가 있나요?

여 네. 그 버스 표를 사시겠어요?

남 네. 두 장 부탁합니다.

Vocabulary leave 떠나다    noon 정오 
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여  지금 몇 시야?

남 오전 8시인데. 

여 우리가 몇 시에 기차역에 있어야 하지?

남 Jane이 탄 기차가 9시 30분에 도착해.

여 오, 지금 거기 가야겠다.

남 빨리 그녀를 보고 싶다. 

W  What time is it now?

M  It’s 8:00 a.m.

W  What time should we be at the train 
station?

M Jane’s train arrives at 9:30.

W  Oh, we should go there now. 

M  I can’t wait to see her.

2 

Vocabulary train station 기차역

여  Matt, 우리가 공항에 몇 시에 가야 하지?

남 음, 우리 비행기는 오후 2시에 떠나지.

여  비행기가 떠나기 2시간 전까지 거기 가 있어야 해.

남 맞아. 공항 셔틀 버스로 공항까지 한 시간이 걸려.

여  좋아. 공항 셔틀 버스를 타자. 지금 오전 10시이지. 한 

시간 후에 집을 나서야겠다. 

W  Matt, what time should we leave for the 
airport?

M Well, our flight leaves at 2:00 p.m.

W  We have to be there two hours before our 
flight leaves.

M  Right. It takes an hour to get to the airport 
by the airport shuttle. 

W  OK. Let’s take the airport shuttle. It’s 10:00 
a.m. now. We should leave home an hour 
from now.

3 

Vocabulary leave for ~을 향해 떠나다    airport 공항      fl ight 비행기     airport shuttle 공항 셔틀 버스 

여 실례합니다. 기차역으로 가는 버스가 있나요?

남  오, 그 버스는 5분 전에 떠났는데요. 다음 버스는 30분 

후에 있어요.

여  오! 전 30분 안에 거기 가야 하는데요. 택시를 타야 할까 

봐요.

남  음, 지하철을 타실 수도 있어요. 기차역까지는 네 정거

장 밖에 안 되거든요.

여 지하철 역까지 멀지 않나요?

남  아뇨. 바로 모퉁이에 있어요. 거기까지 걸어가실 수 있

어요.

여 고맙습니다. 

W  Excuse me. Is there a bus going to the 
train station? 

M  Oh, that bus left five minutes ago. The 
next bus is in 30 minutes. 

W  Oh! I need to be there in 30 minutes. 
Maybe I should take a taxi. 

M  Well, you can take the subway. The train 
station is only four stops away.

W  Isn’t it far to the subway station?

M  No. It’s just at the corner. You can walk 
there.  

W  Thank you.

4 

Vocabulary train station 기차역     subway 지하철    stop 정류장, 정거장     corner 모퉁이, 코너 
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Vocabulary museum 박물관     in front of ~의 앞에     bookstore  서점     fare (교통) 요금 

① M  What time does the train for London 
leave?

 W The London train leaves at 10:30 a.m. 

② M  What’s the best way to get to the 
theatre?

 W You can take the number 6 bus.

③ M How can I get to the train station?

 W I’m sorry. The train left already. 

④ M Where can I get a taxi?

 W You can get a taxi in front of the hotel.

⑤ M Is the bus from Busan late?

 W No. It’s on time. 

6 
① 남 런던 가는 기차는 몇 시에 떠나나요?

 

 여 런던 가는 기차는 오전 10시 30분에 떠납니다. 

② 남 극장까지 가는 가장 좋은 방법은 무엇인가요?

 

 여 6번 버스를 타실 수 있어요.

③ 남 기차역까지 어떻게 갈 수 있나요?

 여 죄송합니다. 기차는 이미 떠났어요.

④ 남 택시를 어디서 탈 수 있나요?

 여 호텔 앞에서 택시를 타실 수 있어요.

⑤ 남 부산에서 오는 버스는 늦어지나요?

 여 아니요. 제 시간에 옵니다. 

남 안내 말씀 드리겠습니다. 비행기 시간에 변동이 생겼습

니다. 도쿄에서 오는 3번 비행기는 15분 일찍 도착합니다. 

런던에서 오는 7번 비행기도 15분 일찍 도착합니다. 마드리

드에서 오는 8번 비행기는 두 시간 지연됩니다. 파리에서 오

는 9번 비행기는 30분 일찍 도착할 예정입니다. 날씨가 좋

지 않아 토론토 공항은 폐쇄됩니다. 그래서 토론토에서 오는 

10번 비행기는 취소되었습니다. 감사합니다. 

M May I have your attention, please? There 
have been changes to the flight schedules. 
Flight 3 from Tokyo is arriving 15 minutes 
early. Flight 7 from London is also 15 minutes 
early. Flight 8 from Madrid is delayed for 
two hours. Flight 9 from Paris will arrive 30 
minutes early. Bad weather has closed the 
Toronto airport. So, flight 10 from Toronto has 
been cancelled. Thank you.

7 

Vocabulary theatre 극장     on time 정시에

Vocabulary
fl ight schedule 비행기 시간     arrive 도착하다     delay 미루다, 지연, 지체하다.     weather 날씨     
close 닫다, 폐쇄하다     cancel 취소하다  

남 실례합니다. 박물관에는 어떻게 갈 수 있나요?

여 서점 앞에서 30번 버스를 타실 수 있어요.

남 요금이 얼마인가요?

여 1달러에요.

남 박물관까지 얼마나 걸릴까요?

여 약 30분 정도요.

남 감사합니다.

M  Excuse me. How can I get to the 
museum?

W  You can take bus number 30 in front of 
the bookstore.

M  How much is the fare?

W It costs one dollar.

M  How long will it take to get to the 
museum?

W About half an hour.

M Thanks.

5 
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Vocabulary
excited 신이 난, 들뜬, 흥분한     feel sick 토할 것 같다.     fl ying 비행기 여행     shake 흔들리다, 떨리다     
deep breath 심호흡     afraid 겁나는, 두려운    

UNIT       WHAT IS THE WEATHER LIKE?IV
 * Check Up p.25

 01 1. b  2. a  3. c   02 cold, rainy, windy, foggy

 03 A  I went fishing yesterday.

  B Nice! How was the weather there?

  A Well, it rained a lot. 

  B That’s too bad. What was the temperature like?

  A It was about 5 degrees.That was too cold for fishing!

01

 W Now for the weather report. The sun is 
shining in Miami today. But, it will rain 
tomorrow. Heavy snow is now falling in 
Toronto. So the airport is closed. It will rain all 
day in London today. But it will be a fine day 
tomorrow.

여 일기 예보입니다. 오늘 마이애미에서는 해가 납니다. 하

지만, 내일은 비가 올 것입니다. 토론토에는 지금 폭설이 내

리고 있습니다. 그래서 공항은 폐쇄된 상태입니다. 오늘 런

던에는 하루 종일 비가 올 것입니다. 하지만 내일은 날씨가 

갤 것입니다.

Check Up Scripts

weather report 일기 예보     shine 빛나다     heavy snow 폭설     fi ne day 개인 날Vocabulary

남 유럽 여행 준비 다 했어?

여 그런 것 같아.

남 무슨 문제야? 아주 행복한 목소리로 들리지 않는데.

여 글쎄, 난 비행기 타고 여행해 본 적이 전혀 없어.

남 그럼 신나겠네.

여  알아. 하지만 비행기 여행만 생각해도 울렁거리는걸. 

보여? 다리가 후들거리고 있잖아.

남 괜찮을 거야, Jessica. 그냥 심호흡을 해봐.

M  Are you ready for your trip to Europe?

W I think so.

M  What’s wrong? You don’t sound very 
happy.

W Well, I’ve never travelled by plane before.

M  Then you should be excited.

W  I know. But, I feel a little sick when I think 
of flying. See? My legs are shaking.

M  It’ll be OK, Jessica. Just take a deep 
breath.

8 
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03

A I went fishing yesterday.

B Nice! How was the weather there?

A  Well, it rained a lot. 

B That’s too bad. What was the temperature 

 like?

A   It was about 5 degrees. That was too cold 
for fishing!

A 난 어제 낚시하러 갔어.

B 좋았겠네! 거기 날씨는 어땠어?

A 음, 비가 많이 왔어.

B 정말 안됐구나. 기온은 어땠어?

A 약 5도 정도였어. 낚시하기에는 너무 추웠어!

terrible 끔찍한, 심한     foggy 안개 낀     windy 바람 부는     rainy 비가 오는 Vocabulary

Vocabulary temperature 기온     degree (온도, 각도 등의) 도 

Actual Test  1 ②    2 ②    3 ⑤    4 ②    5 ④    6 ③    7 ③    8 ③                   | p.26

남 ① 화창하고 춥다. 

 ② 눈이 오고 춥다.

 ③ 바람이 불고 춥다. 

 ④ 흐리고 시원하다.

 ⑤ 안개가 끼고 춥다. 

M ① It is sunny and cold. 

 ② It is snowy and cold.

 ③ It is windy and cold.

 ④ It is cloudy and cool. 

 ⑤ It is foggy and cold.

1 

sunny 화창한     snowy 눈이 오는     windy 바람 부는     cloudy 흐린, 구름 낀     cool 시원한     foggy 안개 낀Vocabulary

남 안녕하세요.

여 안녕하세요. 오늘 아침엔 꽤 춥네요.

남 네, 그렇죠. 눈이 올지도 모른대요.

여 따뜻하게 하기 위해 커피가 좀 필요하겠는데요.

남 이게 8번 버스 줄 맞나요?

여 네, 그래요.

남 오, 이제 버스가 오네요.

M Good morning.

W Hello. It’s quite cold this morning.

M Yes, it is. They say it might snow.

W I need some coffee to warm up.

M Is this the line for number 8?

W Yes, it is.

M Oh, here comes the bus now.

2 

02

M  Look, it’s sunny out. 

W What a beautiful day!

M  The weather was terrible last week.

W  I know. On Monday, it was foggy and 
cold.

M  On Tuesday, it was windy and rainy.

W I’m just happy that it didn’t snow.

남 봐, 밖이 화창해.

여 정말 아름다운 날이야!

남 지난 주에는 날씨가 아주 안 좋았지.

여 알아. 월요일에는 안개가 끼고 추웠지.

남 화요일에는 바람이 불고 비가 왔어.

여 눈이 안 왔던 게 다행이야. 
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gloves 장갑     popular 인기 있는     ski wear 스키용품Vocabulary

rainy 비가 오는     weather 날씨     blue 우울한, 침울한     boring 지루한     favorite 매우 좋아하는     
outside 바깥Vocabulary

여 오늘 비가 올 거야.

남 난 비 오는 날씨가 싫어. 비가 오면 우울해지거든.

여 난 비 오는 날이 좋던데. 비 소리 듣는 게 좋아.

남 하지만, 밖에 나갈 수 없잖아. 지루해.

여 난 비 오는 날, 내가 좋아하는 의자에 앉아서 책을 읽어.

남 난 화창한 날씨에 밖에 있는 게 좋아.

W It’s going to rain today.

M  I hate rainy weather. The rain makes me 
feel blue.

W I love rainy days. I like to listen to the rain.

M But you can’t go outside. It’s boring.

W  I sit in my favorite chair and read on rainy 
days.

M I’d like to be outside in the sun.

4 

남 밖에 날씨 어때?

여 영하 4도이고, 바람이 몹시 불어.

남 집에 있으면서 커피나 마시자.

여 난 학교에 가야해. 버스 기다리는 동안 춥겠는데.

남 두꺼운 코트를 입고, 장갑을 껴.

여 그럴게. 

M What’s it like out?

W It’s - 4 degrees, and very windy.

M Let’s stay home and drink coffee.

W  I have to go to school. It’ll be cold waiting 
for the bus.

M  Wear your heavy coat, and gloves. 

W I will.

5 

heavy 무거운, 두꺼운     coat 코트     gloves 장갑 Vocabulary

남 실례합니다. 장갑을 좀 사야 하는데요.

여 여기 좋은 운전용과 골프용 장갑이 있습니다.

남  음. 전 따뜻한 장갑이 필요하거든요.

여 이 털 장갑들은 인기가 많아요.

남  좋네요, 하지만 충분히 따뜻하지 못하겠는데요. 다음 주

에 스키 타러 가거든요.

여  아하! 그렇다면 저쪽에 있는 저희 스키용품을 보실 수 

있습니다. 

남 감사합니다.

M Excuse me. I need to buy some gloves. 

W  We have some nice gloves for driving and 
golfing here.

M  Umm. I need warm gloves. 

W These wool gloves are popular.

M  They are nice, but they won’t be warm 
enough. I’m going skiing next week.

W  Aha! Then you can see our ski wear over 
there.

M Thank you.

3 

quite 꽤, 상당히    warm up 따뜻하게 데우다, 몸을 풀다    line 선, 줄     bus stop 버스 정류장     offi ce 사무실Vocabulary
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[자동 응답기 소리]

여 안녕, Marvin. 나 Sally야. 오늘 비가 꽤 많이 오네. 하

지만 내일은 하루 종일 날씨가 좋고 화창할거래. 그래서 내

일 오후에 자전거 타러 가려고 해. 내 자전거 고쳐줘서 고마

워. 오늘밤에 자전거 가지러 가도 될까? 집에 오면 나한테 

다시 전화해 줘.

남 저는 알래스카에 삽니다. 이곳은 여름에 매우 날씨가 좋

아요. 기온은 약 20도 입니다. 여름에는 매일 21시간 동안 

햇빛이 납니다. 그러나, 겨울에는 매우 춥습니다. 하루에 3시

간 밖에 햇빛이 나지 않습니다. 겨울에 기온은 보통 영하 26

도입니다. 매년 151cm 가량 눈이 옵니다. 

[The answering machine beeps.]

W Hi, Marvin, this is Sally. It’s raining pretty 
hard today. But they say that it will be nice 
and sunny all day tomorrow. So I’m going for 
a bicycle ride tomorrow afternoon. Thanks for 
fixing my bicycle. Can I pick up my bicycle 
tonight? Please call me back when you get 
home.

M I live in Alaska. The summer here is very 
nice. The temperature is about 20 degrees. 
We get 21 hours of sunlight each day in 
summer. However, in the winter, it is very 
cold. We only have 3 hours of sunlight a day. 
The temperature in the winter is usually -26 
degrees. We get about 151 cm of snow every 
year.

7 

8 

pretty hard 꽤 심하게     all day 온 종일     fi x 고치다      call back 다시 전화를 하다Vocabulary

temperature 기온     sunlight 햇빛     usually 보통     degree (온도, 각도 등의) 도Vocabulary

check 점검하다, 확인하다     snowboarding 스노우 보드 타기     look forward to ~을 고대하다Vocabulary

① 남 실례합니다. 

 여 네? 무엇을 도와드릴까요?

② 남 밖에 날씨 어때?

 여 모르겠는데. 확인해 볼게.

③ 남 방학 때 날씨 어땠어?

 

 여 방학은 굉장했어.

④ 남 어젯밤에 눈이 많이 왔어.

 여 그래. 이제 스노우 보드 타러 갈 수 있어. 

⑤ 남 비가 오고 있어. 소풍이 취소됐어.

 여 오, 정말 유감이야. 고대했었는데.

① M Excuse me.

 W Yes? How can I help you?

② M What’s it like out?

 W I don’t know. Let me check.

③ M  How was the weather on your 
vacation?

 W My vacation was great.

④  M It snowed a lot last night.

 W Yeah. Now we can go snowboarding.

⑤  M It’s raining. They cancelled the picnic.

 W  Oh, that’s too bad. I was looking 
forward to it.

6 
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 * Check Up p.31

 01 c   02 1.T  2.T 

 03 A Sarah, why do you study English?  

  B I want to become a travel guide. 

  A Ahh... English will be very useful then.

  B What about you? What do you want to do?

  A I really want to take great pictures. 

  B You’d be a great photographer.

UNIT      WHAT DO YOU WANT TO BE 
                                            IN THE FUTURE?
V

01

M Kate, congratulations! You came in first!

W  Thank you! I can’t believe it. I am so 
happy.

M  You trained very hard. You are such a 
good skater.

W  I hope to become the best speed skater 
in the world.

남 Kate, 축하해! 네가 1등으로 들어왔어!

여 고마워! 믿을 수가 없어. 정말 기쁘다.

남  넌 아주 열심히 훈련했잖아. 넌 정말 훌륭한 스케이트 

선수야.

여 난 세계 최고의 스피드 스케이트 선수가 되고 싶어.

Check Up Scripts

02

W Happy Birthday! I baked this cake myself.

M Wow! It’s in the shape of a piano!

W  Well, I know you will be a famous pianist 
one day.

M And you will open your own bakery.

W That would be great.

03

A Sarah, why do you study English?  

B I want to become a travel guide. 

A Ahh... English will be very useful then.

B   What about you? What do you want to 
do?

A I really want to take great pictures. 

여 생일 축하해! 내가 이 케이크 직접 구웠어.

남 와! 피아노 모양이네!

여  음, 난 네가 언젠가 유명한 피아니스트가 될 것을 알고 

있거든.

남 그리고 넌 너의 제과점을 열 거고 말이야.

여 그거 정말 멋지겠다. 

A Sarah, 넌 영어를 왜 공부하니?

B 난 여행 안내원이 되고 싶거든.

A 아…그렇다면 영어가 아주 유용하겠다.

B 넌 어때? 넌 무엇을 하고 싶어?

A 난 정말로 훌륭한 사진을 찍고 싶어.

congratulations 축하, 축하해     train 훈련, 단련하다     skater 스케이트 선수 Vocabulary

bake (빵 등을) 굽다     in the shape of ~의 형태(모양)로     famous 유명한     pianist 피아니스트     
one day 언젠가     bakery 빵집, 제과점     baker 제빵사, 빵집 주인Vocabulary
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Vocabulary travel guide  여행 안내원     useful 유용한, 도움 되는     photographer 사진작가

Actual Test  1 ②    2 ③    3 ④    4 ②    5 ②    6 ①    7 ④    8 ③                   | p.32

남  우리 딸 노래하는 것 좀 들어봐요. 그 애는 굉장한 영화 

배우가 될 거에요.

여  맞아요. 그애 선생님이 그 애는 음악을 공부해야 한다고 

하셨어요.

남 사실 난 그 애가 피아니스트가 되면 좋겠는데.

여 Martha는 노래하는 것을 정말 좋아하는 것 같아요.

남  맞아요. 그녀는 항상 노래하는 것이 그녀의 꿈이라고 말

하지요.

M  Listen to our daughter sing. I think she 
could be a big movie star. 

W  Right. Her teacher said that she should 
study music. 

M Actually, I want her to be a pianist.

W I think Martha loves singing.

M  You’re right. She always says that her 
dream is to sing.

1 

여 제가 아이였을 때, 어떤 의사 선생님이 제 생명을 구해

주셨어요. 그 때 이후로 전 다른 아이들을 구해주고 싶어졌

습니다. 전 의대에서 열심히 공부할 거에요. 전 이 마을에 의

사 Susan Lowe로서 일하러 돌아올 겁니다. 

W When I was a child, a doctor saved my 
life. Since then, I have wanted to save other 
children. I will work hard in medical school. 
I will come back to this town to work as Dr. 
Susan Lowe.  

3 

actually 사실은, 실제로 Vocabulary

남 난 대학에서 뭘 공부해야 할지 모르겠어.

여 무엇에 관심이 있는데?

남 사실 난 만화 그리기를 좋아해.

여 그럼, 먼저 미술을 공부하면 되겠네.

남 그래, 그리고 난 컴퓨터로 뭔가 하는 것을 정말 좋아해.

여  컴퓨터 애니메이션은 어때?

남 와, 정말 멋진 생각이다! 

M I don’t know what to study in university.

W What are you interested in?

M I like to draw cartoons actually.

W Well, you could study art first. 

M  Yes. Also I love doing something with 
computers. 

W  What about computer animation?

M Wow, that’s an awesome idea! 

2 

university 대학     be interested in ~에 관심, 흥미가 있는     draw 그림 그리다     cartoon 만화    
art 미술, 예술     animation 애니메이션, 만화 영화    awesome 엄청난, 굉장한 

Vocabulary

save 구하다     life 생명, 삶     medical school 의대     artist 예술가, 화가     scientist 과학자     nurse 간호사Vocabulary

B You’d be a great photographer. B 넌 훌륭한 사진작가가 될 거야.
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남 정말 흥분된다. 이건 James에게 중요한 경기잖아.

여 그가 1등으로 들어올 거라고 확신해.

남 긴장돼. 그가 안 보여.

여 달리기 선수들이 들어오고 있는데.

남 James는 어디 있어?

여  오, 이런, 딱한 James. 그가 졌어. 정말 슬프겠다.

여  저를 만나주셔서 감사합니다. 좋은 작가에게 필요한 것

이 무엇인가요?

남  글쎄, 운도 좀 필요하지. 하지만 무엇 보다 열심히 해야 

한단다.

여 그것이 훌륭한 작가가 되는 비결인가요?

남 그건 중요하지. 물론 기술도 필요하단다.

여  전 글쓰기를 정말 좋아해요. 하고 싶은 이야기가 정말 

많아요.

남 그렇다면 너는 매우 좋은 작가임에 틀림없단다.

남 네 장래 계획은 뭐야?

여 아직 확실히 모르겠어. 넌 어때?

남  난 대학 가기 전에 여행을 하고 싶어. 그게 날 더 좋은 

학생이 되도록 해줄 것 같아서.

여 그렇구나. 난 자원 봉사를 할 지도 몰라.

남 부모님은 그에 대해 어떻게 생각하셔?

여 아주 좋은 생각이라고 여기시지.

M  I’m so excited. This is an important race 
for James. 

W I’m sure he’ll come in first.

M I’m nervous. I don’t see him.

W I see the runners coming. 

M Where’s James?

W  Oh, awful, poor James. He lost. He must 
feel so sad.

W  Thanks for meeting me. What do good 
writers need?

M  Well, you need some luck. But most of all, 
you must work hard. 

W Is that the secret to being a good writer?

M  It’s important. Of course you need skill, 
too.

W  I love writing. I have so many stories to 
tell.

M  Then you must be a very good writer.

M What are your plans for the future?

W I’m not really sure yet. What about you?

M  I want to travel before I go to university. 
I think it will help me be a better student.

W Yeah. I might do some volunteer work.

M What do your parents think of that?

W They think that it’s a great idea.

4 

5 

6 

race 경주, 시합     nervous 불안한, 초조한     runner 달리기 선수, 주자     awful 끔찍한, 지독한
lose (경주에서) 지다     scared 겁나는, 무서운Vocabulary

luck 행운     most of all 무엇보다     secret 비밀, 비결     skill 솜씨, 기술     important  중요한Vocabulary

university 대학교     volunteer work 자원 봉사Vocabulary
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남 제가 어렸을 때, 저는 학교를 싫어했어요. 남동생, 여동

생들과는 싸웠고요. 저희 선생님들과 부모님은 걱정을 하셨

어요. 그분들은 어떻게 해야 할지 모르셨습니다. 어느 날, 저

희 할아버지께서 절 부모가 없는 아이들의 집을 방문하는데 

데려가셨어요. 전 충격을 받았어요. 전 가족도 없고 교과서

를 살 돈도 없는 아이들이 그렇게 많은 줄 몰랐거든요. 이제 

전 제가 잘못했다는 걸 알게 되었어요. 저희 할아버지께서 

제가 이것을 깨닫게 도와주셨습니다.

M When I was young, I hated school. I fought 
with my brother and sister. My teachers and 
parents were worried. They didn’t know what 
to do. One day, my grandfather took me to 
visit a home for children without parents. I was 
shocked. I didn’t know so many children had 
no family, or no money for school books. I now 
know that I was wrong. My grandfather helped 
me to understand this.

8 

dancer 댄서, 무용수     soccer player 축구 선수     dentist 치과 의사     look into ~의 속을 들여다 보다, 조사하다Vocabulary

fi ght 싸우다     visit 방문하다     shocked 충격 받은Vocabulary

① 남 난 장래에 댄서가 되고 싶어.

 여 넌 훌륭한 댄서가 될 거야. 

② 남 넌 축구 선수가 되고 싶니?

 여 아니, 진짜로는 아냐. 난 그만큼 잘 하지 못하는걸. 

③ 남 Matt는 치과 의사가 되고 싶대. 

 여  윽. 난 사람들 입 속을 들여다 보는 건 싫을 것 같은데. 

④ 남 대학 후에 뭘 하고 싶어?

 

 여 축구 하러 가자. 

⑤ 남 장래 계획이 뭐야?

 여 잘 모르겠어. 생각해 봐야 해.

① M I want to be a dancer in the future.

 W You would be a great dancer.

② M Do you want to be a soccer player?

 W  No, not really. I don’t think I play well 
enough.

③ M Matt says he wants to be a dentist.

 W  Yuck. I would hate to look into people’s 
mouths.

④ M  What do you want to do after 
university?

 W Let’s go play soccer.

⑤ M What are your plans for the future?

 W I’m not sure. I have to think about it.

7 



UNIT       WOULD YOU LIKE SOME COFFEE?VI
 * Check Up p.37

 01 a   02  a, c 

 03 A This is bulgogi. My mom made it. Would you like some?

  B Sure. I’d love some.

  A Go ahead. Help yourself. 

  B Thanks.

  A Do you want some more rice?

  B No, thanks. I’m full.

01

W Would you like some curry?

M  I’ve never had curry before. It smells 
strong. 

W Here, try some. How is it?

M It’s a little hot, but tasty. 

W Have some more if you want. 

M Thanks.

여 카레 좀 드실래요?

남  전 카레를 한번도 먹어본 적이 없는데요. 냄새가 강하네

요.

여 여기요, 좀 드셔 보세요. 어때요?

남 약간 맵네요. 하지만 맛있어요. 

여 원하시면 더 드세요.

남 감사합니다.

Check Up Scripts

02

W I’m hungry.

M Me, too. I’m having grilled fish and fruit.

W I don’t like fish. What should I have?

M You should try the chicken salad. 

W  OK. The baked potatoes look good, too. 
I’ll have the chicken salad and potatoes.

03

A  This is bulgogi. My mom made it. Would 
you like some?

B Sure. I’d love some.

A Go ahead. Help yourself.

B Thanks.

A Do you want some more rice?

B No, thanks. I’m full.

여 배고프다.

남 나도. 난 그릴에 구운 생선이랑 과일 먹을래.

여 난 생선을 좋아하지 않는데. 뭘 먹어야 할까?

남 치킨 샐러드 먹어봐.

여  좋아. 구운 감자도 맛있어 보인다. 난 치킨 샐러드랑 

감자를 먹을래.

A  이건 불고기야. 우리 엄마가 만들어 주셨어. 좀 먹어 볼

래?

B 물론이야. 좀 먹어 보고 싶어.

A 마음껏 먹어.

B 고마워.

A 밥 좀 더 먹을래?

B 아니, 고마워. 배가 불러. 

curry 카레     hot 매운, 뜨거운     tasty 맛있는Vocabulary

grilled 그릴에 구운     fi sh 생선     fruit 과일     chicken salad 치킨 샐러드     baked 구운Vocabulary

UNIT 6 | 21
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noodle 국수, 면류     next door 옆 집, 옆 건물Vocabulary

남 안녕, Jane. 집에 늦게 왔구나.

여 응. 시험 공부를 했거든.

남  방금 피자 주문했는데. 좀 먹을래? 20분 안에 배달될 거야.

여 어떤 종류로 주문했어?

남 치즈, 소시지, 그리고 버섯.

여 음, 내가 좋아하는 거야. 

M Hi, Jane. You’re home late.

W Yes. I was studying for my exam.

M  I just ordered a pizza. Would you like 
some? It will be delivered in 20 minutes.

W What kind did you order?

M Cheese, sausage, and mushroom.

W Yum, my favorite.

2 

exam 시험      order 주문하다      deliver 배달하다      mushroom 버섯Vocabulary

Vocabulary rice 밥, 쌀     full 가득 찬, 배부른

Actual Test  1 ②    2 ①    3 ③    4 ③    5 ⑤    6 ①    7 ②    8 ③                   | p.38

남 약간 배가 고픈데.

여  국수 같은 것 먹을래? 음, 옆 집에 가보려고 하는데. 거

기 김밥도 있어. 

남 난 점심에 김밥을 먹었는데.

여 오. 그럼, 제과점에서 뭘 좀 사올까?

남 좋아.

여 샌드위치 좀 사올까 하는데. 그럼, 넌 뭘 먹을래?

남 난 네가 먹는 걸로 먹을게.

M I’m a little hungry.

W  Do you want some noodles or something? 
 Well, I could go next door. They have 
gimbab, too.

M I had gimbab for lunch.

W  Oh. Well, how about something from the 
bakery?

M That sounds good.

W  I think I’ll get a sandwich. So, what do you 
want?

M I’ll have what you’re having.

1 

남 뷔페 정말 좋았어.

여 나도. 모든 것을 조금씩 먹어볼 수 있잖아.

남 다른 것 더 먹을래?

여 디저트는 뭐가 있나 보러 가자.

남 모두 다 아주 좋아 보이는데.

여 난 케이크를 좀 먹을래. 너도 좀 먹을래? 

M I really enjoyed the buffet.

W Me, too. You can try a little of everything.

M Do you want anything else?

W Let’s go see what they have for dessert.

M It all looks so good.

W  I’m going to have some cake. Would you 
like some?

3 

buffet 뷔페     dessert 디저트, 후식Vocabulary
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여 좀 괜찮니?

남 사실 그렇지 않아요. 아직도 배가 아파요. 

여 수프를 전혀 먹지 않았구나. 과일 좀 먹을래?

남 아뇨, 감사해요. 아무 것도 정말 먹고 싶지 않아요.

여 알겠다. 녹차 좀 만들어 줄게.

남  고마워요, 엄마. 녹차를 먹으면 항상 더 좋아지더라고요. 

W Are you feeling better?

M Not really. I still have a stomachache.

W  You didn’t eat any soup at all. Do you 
want some fruit?

M No, thanks. I don’t really want anything.

W I know. I’ll make you some green tea.

M  Thanks, Mom. That always makes me feel 
better.

4 

stomachache 복통     soup 수프     green tea 녹차 Vocabulary

남 뭘 주문해야 할지 모르겠네.

여 스파게티와 피자가 훌륭한 건 알고 있는데.

남 나는 파스타를 좋아하지 않아.

여 지난 번에 새우 샐러드 먹었는데. 맛있었어.

남 나는 고기를 좀 먹고 싶어.

여 흠… 여기 치킨도 아주 맛있어.

남 스테이크는 어때?

여 모르겠는데. 하지만 맛있어 보이는데. 그걸 먹어보자.

M I’m not sure what to order.

W  I know that the spaghetti and pizza are 
good.

M I don’t like pasta. 

W  I had the shrimp salad last time. It was 
good.

M I’d like to have some meat.

W  Hmm… the chicken is very tasty here.

M What’s the steak like?

W  I don’t’ know. But it sounds good. Let’s try 
that.

5 

spaghetti 스파게티     pasta 파스타     shrimp 새우     meat 고기, 육류     steak 스테이크Vocabulary

남 들어와. Melissa는 오는 중이야. 

여 그래. 오늘 밖에 날씨 정말 덥다.

남 여기, 아이스 티 좀 마셔.

여 고마워. 이거 맛있다.

남 우리 과제에 대한 좋은 생각이 있어.

여  아주 좋아! Melissa가 여기 오면 그것에 대해 이야기하

자.

M Come on in. Melissa is on her way.

W OK. It’s really hot outside today.

M Here, have some ice tea.

W Thanks. This is tasty.

M I have a great idea for our project.

W  Excellent! We can talk about it when 
Melissa gets here.

6 

on one’s way ~로 오는 중에Vocabulary
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invite 초대하다     hold 파티, 모임 등을 열다, 개최하다     hot dog 핫도그     grill 그릴에 굽다     vegetable 야채Vocabulary

India 인도     meal 식사, 끼니     dish 접시, 요리     spicy 매운Vocabulary

남 저는 지난 여름 토론토에 있는 제 사촌을 방문하러 갔습

니다. 그녀의 친구 Jackie가 우리를 파티에 초대했습니다. 

파티는 Jackie의 집에서 열렸어요. Jackie의 아빠는 핫도

그와 햄버거를 만드셨어요. 그는 치킨과 야채도 그릴에 구우

셨지요. Jackie의 엄마는 우리에게 디저트로 사과와 케이

크를 마음껏 먹으라고 권하셨어요. 전 정말 재미있었답니다. 

하지만, 너무 많이 먹어서 움직일 수가 없었어요.

여 Rajeed는 제 친구입니다. 그는 인도에서 왔어요. 우리

는 어젯밤에 한식집에 갔습니다. Rajeed는 김치찌개를 

골랐어요. 그는 그것이 맛있다고 말했습니다. 하지만 그는 

식사를 다 끝내지 못했어요. Rajeed는 배부르다고 말했습

니다. 하지만 제 생각에 요리가 그에게는 너무 매웠던 것 

같아요. 

질문 여자는 그녀의 친구가 왜 식사를 다 끝내지 못했다고 

생각하나요? 

M I went to visit my cousin in Toronto last 
summer. Her friend Jackie invited us to a 
party. It was held in Jackie’s house. Jackie’s 
dad made hot dogs and hamburgers. He 
also grilled chicken and vegetables. Jackie’s 
mom asked us to help ourselves to apples 
and cake for dessert. I had a lot of fun. But I 
ate so much that I couldn’t move.

W Rajeed is my friend. He’s from India. 
We went to a Korean restaurant last night. 
Rajeed chose kimchijigae. He said that it was 
delicious. But he did not finish all of his meal. 
Rajeed said that he was full. But I think that 
the dish was too spicy for him. 

Question   Why does the woman think her 
friend didn’t finish all of his meal?

7 

8 

UNIT        WHAT DOES YOUR DOG 
                                                   LOOK LIKE?
VII

 * Check Up p.43

 01 c  02 a

 03 A  Dad, what are you doing?

  B I’m looking for my winter coat. It’s getting cold out.

  A What does it look like?

  B It’s black with fur inside.

  A I think Mom put it in the closet.
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03

A  Dad, what are you doing?

B  I’m looking for my winter coat. It’s getting 
cold out.

A What does it look like?

B It’s black with fur inside.

A I think Mom put it in the closet.

A  아빠, 뭐 하고 계세요?

B 내 겨울 코트를 찾고 있단다. 밖이 추워지고 있잖니.

A 어떻게 생긴 건데요?

B 안에 털이 달리고 검은 색이야.

A 엄마가 벽장에 넣어두신 것 같은데요. 

02

M  I love my house. It has a green roof and 
a red door. It’s on the corner. We don’t have 
any trees. But there’s a flower garden in the 
front. It’s very sunny in the afternoon. 

남 전 우리 집을 사랑합니다. 초록색 지붕과 빨간 문이 있

있습니다. 저희 집은 모퉁이에 있습니다. 나무는 없어요. 하

지만 앞에 꽃밭이 있습니다. 오후에는 햇살이 아주 잘 비칩

니다. 

Vocabulary roof 지붕     corner 모퉁이, 모서리     fl ower garden 꽃밭, 화원

01

M  Hey, Jen. What are you doing? Aren’t we 
going cycling?

W  Hi, Max. Yes, but I have to fix my bicycle 
first.

M  Oh. Can I help?

W No, thanks. I’m almost done.

M  OK. Don’t forget your helmet.

남 이봐, Jen. 뭐 하고 있어? 우리 자전거 타러 안 가?

여  안녕, Max. 가야지. 그런데 먼저 내 자전거를 고쳐야 해.

남 오. 도와 줄까?

여  아니, 괜찮아. 거의 다 됐어.

남 좋아. 헬멧 잊지 마.

Check Up Scripts

cycling 자전거 타기     fi x 고치다, 수리하다Vocabulary

Vocabulary fur 털     inside 안에     closet 벽장

Actual Test  1 ⑤    2 ②    3 ⑤    4 ③    5 ⑤    6 ⑤    7 ④    8 ①                   | p.44

남 분실물 센터입니까?

여 네. 도와드릴까요?

남 가방을 잃어버렸어요. 그것은 검정색이에요.

여  여기 검정색 가방이 여러 개 있는데요. 좀 더 자세히 말

씀해 주시겠습니까?

남 그건 스포츠 가방이에요. 노란색 손잡이가 있고요.

여 거기에 축구 선수 그림이 있나요?

M Is this the lost and found?

W Yes. Can I help you?

M I lost a bag. It’s black. 

W  We have several black bags. Can you 
describe it more?

M It’s a sports bag. It has a yellow handle. 

W  Does it have a soccer player on it?

1 



26

kid 아이, 어린이     elementary school 초등 학교     class 학급, 반(친구들)     eye glasses 안경     
beside ~의 옆에     

남 이 사진 속의 아이들은 다 누구니?

여  이건 우리 엄마 초등학교 학급 사진이야.

남 와. 누가 너희 엄마야?

여  그녀는 좀 작아. 빨간색 드레스를 입고, 안경을 끼고 있어.

남  오, 그녀는 긴 검은 머리의 키 큰 소녀 옆에 있지? 

여  맞아. 그게 엄마야. 

여 저희 언니는 훌륭한 케이크를 만듭니다. 어젯밤에는 초

콜릿 케이크를 만들었습니다. 그 케이크는 그녀의 친구인  

Ruby를 위한 것입니다. 언니가 이 케이크를 만드는 데 4시

간이 걸렸습니다. 하지만, 그건 정말 예뻐요. 안에는 딸기 크

림이 들고, 위에는 분홍색 꽃이 얹혀 있어요. 

M Who are all these kids in this picture?

W  It’s my mom’s elementary school class 
picture.

M Wow. Which one is her?

W  She’s a little short. She’s wearing a red 
dress and eye glasses.

M  Oh, is she beside the tall girl with long 
black hair?

W Yes. That’s her.

W My sister makes great cakes. Last night 
she made a chocolate cake. The cake is for 
her friend, Ruby. It took my sister four hours 
to make this cake. But it’s really pretty. It has 
strawberry cream inside and has pink flowers 
on it.

2 

3 

Vocabulary

Vocabulary strawberry 딸기

남  Gina! 이 페이지를 봐! 이 드레스는 네가 만든 거랑 꼭 

같게 보이는데. 

여 보자. 오, 맞아. 잡지에서 사진을 좀 찍으러 왔었어.

남  와! 넌 이제 유명하구나! 하얀 줄무늬가 있는 이거 아주 

예쁜걸. 다음에는 뭘 할 거니?

여 다음에는 남자 셔츠를 만드려고 해. 

M  Gina! Look at this page! This dress looks 
just like the one you made. 

W  Let’s see. Oh, yes. The magazine came to 
take some pictures.

M  Wow! You’re famous now. This one with 
the white stripes is beautiful. What are you 
going to do next?

W  I’m going to make some men’s shirts next.

4 

Vocabulary lost and found 분실물 센터     several  여러 개의     describe  묘사하다, 자세히 설명하다     handle 손잡이

남 아뇨. 거기에 테니스 선수 그림이 있어요.M No. There’s a tennis player on it.

Vocabulary magazine 잡지     stripe 줄무늬

남 도와드릴까요?

여 네. 제 친구를 찾고 있는데요.

남 어떻게 생기셨나요?

M Can I help you?

W Yes. I’m looking for my friend. 

M What does she look like?

5 
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여 키가 크고 갈색 머리에요. 안경을 끼고 있고요.

남  오, 네. 8번 테이블에 계시네요. 메뉴를 보고 계십니다.

여 감사합니다. 커피 좀 가져다 주시겠어요?

남 물론입니다. 

① 남 재킷을 잃어버렸어. 본 적 있어?

 여 어떻게 생긴 건데?

② 남 다음 주말에 뭐 할거야?

 여 우리 할아버지, 할머니 댁에 가려고. 

③ 남 안녕! 여기서 뭐 하고 있어?

 여 내 남동생을 기다리고 있어. 

④ 남 사진에 저 사람은 누구야?

 여 금발 머리 남자 말이니?

⑤ 남 오늘 밤에 뭐해?

 여 응. 나도 오늘 밤에 거기 갈 거야. 

W  She’s tall and has brown hair. She’s 
wearing glasses.

M  Oh, yes. She’s at table 8. She’s looking at 
the menu.

W  Thank you. Could you bring us some 
coffee, please?

M Sure.

① M I lost my jacket. Have you seen it?

 W What does it look like?

② M What are you doing next weekend?

 W I’m going to my grandparents’ house.

③ M Hi! What are you doing here?

 W I’m waiting for my brother.

④ M Who’s that in the picture?

 W You mean the man with blond hair?

⑤ M What are you doing tonight?

 W Yes. I’ll go there tonight, too.

6 

menu 메뉴Vocabulary

Vocabulary jacket 재킷     weekend 주말     grandparents 조부모     blond 금발의

[전화 벨소리]

남 안녕, Cindy. 뭐 하고 있니?

여 안녕, Max. 그냥 책 읽고 있어. 어디야?

남  너네 집 옆 공원에 있어. 개를 산책 시키고 있어. 우리 

부모님이 사주셨거든.

여 좋겠다. 나도 개를 정말 갖고 싶은데. 어떻게 생겼어?

남 까만 색인데 하얀 발을 가지고 있어. 정말 귀여워.

여 아… 보고 싶은데.

남 공원으로 와서 우리랑 함께 하자.

여 좋아. 

[The telephone rings.]

M Hello, Cindy. What are you doing?

W Hi, Max. I’m just reading. Where are you?

M  At the park by your house. I’m walking my 
dog. My parents bought it for me. 

W  Nice. I’d love to get a dog. What does it 
look like?

M  He’s black with white paws. He’s really 
cute.

W Awww ... I’d like to see it.

M  Come down to the park and join us.

W OK.

7 

by ~옆에     paw  (동물의 발톱이 달린) 발Vocabulary



28

여  이봐, 무슨 일 있니? 창백해 보이는데.

남 어젯밤에 잠을 잘 못 잤어. 요새 잠을 잘 못 자.

여  매일 운동을 하는 건 어때? 그건 잠을 잘 자도록 도와줄 

거야.

남 매일 조깅을 하는 걸.

여 그럼, 너 매일 커피 마시니?

남 아니. 하지만 녹차는 자주 마셔.

여  그게 네가 잠을 잘 못 자는 이유일지도 몰라. 차 마시는 

걸 그만둬 보는 게 좋겠어.

남 그렇게 해볼게. 고마워.

W  Hey, what’s wrong? You look pale.

 M  I didn’t sleep well last night. I have trouble 
sleeping these days.

W  How about exercising every day? It will 
help you sleep well.

 M I go jogging every day. 

W Well, do you have coffee every day?

 M No. But I often drink green tea.

W  That might be the reason you have some 
trouble sleeping. You’d better stop 
drinking tea. 

 M I’ll try that. Thanks.

8  

pale 창백한     trouble 문제, 곤란   exercise 운동하다     go jogging 조깅하다     reason 이유  Vocabulary

 * Check Up p.49

 01 b  02 1.F  2.T 

 03 A I don’t understand this math problem.

  B OK. Why don’t we meet tomorrow? I’ll help you.

  A Sorry, I can’t. I have a flute lesson. 

  B What about Wednesday?

  A That would be great. Thanks a lot.

UNIT         WHAT ABOUT GOING FISHING?VIII

01

W Thanks for the game. You play tennis well.

M  Thanks. You know the pool opens next 
week. Why don’t we go swimming?

W No, thanks. I can’t swim.

M  Oh! Well, what about going cycling?

W I’d love to.

여 시합 고마웠어. 너는 테니스를 정말 잘하는구나.

남  고마워. 다음 주에 수영장 개장하는 것 알지. 수영하러 

가지 않을래?

여 아니, 됐어. 난 수영 못해.

남  오! 그럼, 자전거 타러 갈래?

여 좋아.

Check Up Scripts

pool 수영장Vocabulary
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02

M Let’s go to a scary movie Friday.

W I have to study.

M We could watch the 8:00 p.m. movie.

W 8:00 p.m. is kind of late.

M You’ll be home by 10:30.

W Sorry, I won’t. 

M Why not?

W I’m afraid of scary movies.

03

A I don’t understand this math problem.

B  OK. Why don’t we meet tomorrow? I’ll 
help you.

A Sorry, I can’t. I have a flute lesson. 

B What about Wednesday?

A That would be great. Thanks a lot.

남  금요일에 무서운 영화 보러 가자.

여 난 공부해야 해.

남  오후 8시 영화를 볼 수도 있어.

여 오후 8시는 좀 늦은데.

남  10시 30분까지 집에 올 수 있어.

여 미안하지만, 안 갈래.

남  왜 안가?

여 난 무서운 영화 보는 게 겁나거든.

A 난 이 수학 문제 이해가 안돼.

B 좋아. 내일 만나는 거 어때? 내가 도와 줄게.

A 미안하지만, 안 되는데. 플루트 레슨이 있거든. 

B 수요일은 어때?

A 그거 좋겠다. 정말 고마워.

scary 무서운, 겁나는     afraid  두려워하는, 겁내는Vocabulary

Actual Test  1 ④    2 ②    3 ④    4 ③    5 ③    6 ①    7 ③    8 ③                   | p.50

Vocabulary parking lot  주차장     fountain 분수     bridge 다리

남 Megan, 우리 센트럴 파크에서 만나는 게 어때? 

여 공원에 카페가 있어?

남 응, 주차장 옆에 새로 생긴 게 있어.

여 그거 분수와 화원 사이에 있어?

남 아니. 분수는 강의 다른 편에 있어. 

여 오, 알겠다. 다리 가까이에 있지.

남 응. 맞아.

M  Megan, what about meeting in Central 
Park? 

W There’s a cafe in the park?

M  Yeah. There is a new one beside the 
parking lot.

W  Is that between the fountain and the 
flower garden?

M  No. The fountain is on the other side of 
the river.

W Oh, I know. It’s near the bridge.

M Yes. That’s right.

1 
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남  이봐, Susan. Matt와 나는 점심 먹으러 가는데. 같이 

가지 않을래?

여  고마워, 하지만 못 가. 도서관에 가야 해.

남 알았어. 샌드위치 좀 가져다 줄게.

여 좋아! 고마워!

여  진흙 축제로 가는 버스 여행이 있대. 재미있어 보여. 

남 난 작년에 갔어. 재미있어.

여 등록하지 않을래?

남 넌 등록해. 나는 다른 데 가보고 싶어.

여 아… 이봐, 제발.  

M  Hey, Susan. Matt and I are going for 
lunch. Why don’t you join us?

W  Thanks, but I can’t. I have to go to the 
library.

M OK. I’ll bring you back a sandwich. 

W Great! Thanks!

W  There’s a bus trip to the Mud Festival. It 
looks like fun. 

M I went last year. It is fun.

W Why don’t we sign up?

M  You go ahead. I’d like to go somewhere 
different.

W Aww… Come on, please.  

2 

3 

library 도서관 Vocabulary

Vocabulary mud 진흙     festival 축제     sign up 등록하다, 참가, 가입하다, 계약하다 

여 토요일에 놀러 갈 수 있니?

남 물론이지. 문제 없어. 놀이 공원에 가자.

여 싫어. 우린 거기에 여러번 갔잖아.

남  흠. 넌 쇼핑몰에 가는 건 좋아하지 않지. 그럼, 영화를 보

러 갈 수도 있는데. 아니면 미술관은 어때? .

여 미술관?

남 그래. 굉장한 소장품이 있던데.

여 좋아. 그거 좋겠다.

W Can you go out on Saturday?

M  Sure. No problem. Let’s go to the 
amusement park .

W No. We’ve been there several times.

M  Hmm. You don’t like to go to the mall. 
Then we can go see a movie. Or how 
about the art gallery?

W The art gallery?

M Yeah. They have an amazing collection. 

W OK. That would be great.

4 

amusement park 놀이 공원     mall 쇼핑몰, 쇼핑 센터     art gallery 미술관, 화랑     
collection 수집품, 소장품, 모음    museum 박물관 

Vocabulary

남 준비 됐어, Betty?

여 잠깐만. John에게 메시지를 쓰고 있어.

남 좋은 생각이네.

여  그래서 나는 “오늘 밤 오후 6시에 해산물 레스토랑에서 

만나는 게 어때?”라고 말했어.

M Are you ready, Betty?

W Hold on. I’m just writing John a message.

M Good idea. 

W  So, I’ve said, “Why don’t you meet us at the 
Seafood Restaurant at 6:00 p.m. tonight?”

5 
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남  오, 오후 6시 30분이 더 좋겠어. 그는 시간이 더 필요할

지도 몰라. 

여  좋아, 6시 30분. 그리고, 네 휴대폰 번호, 010-2214-

4321도 썼어. 맞지?

남 맞아.

M  Oh, better make that 6:30 p.m. He might 
need more time.

W  OK, 6:30. And I wrote your cell phone 
number, 010-2214-4321. Is it correct?

M Correct. 

[전화벨 소리]

남 안녕, Patty. 난 David야.

여 안녕, David.

남  파티에 초대해 줘서 고마워. 난 정말 가고 싶은데 갈 수

가 없어.

여 오, 정말 유감인데. 왜 못오니?

남 우리 가족이 그 주말에 제주도에 가거든.

여 괜찮아. 다음 번에 만날 수 있겠지.

[The telephone rings.]

M Hi, Patty. This is David.

W Hi, David.

M  Thanks for the invitation to your party. 
I’d love to go, but I can’t.

W Oh, that’s too bad. Why not?

M My family is going to Jeju that weekend.

W  No problem. Maybe we can get together 
another time.

6 

message 메시지, 전갈     seafood 해산물     cell phone 휴대폰     correct 정확한, 맞는 Vocabulary

invitation 초대     get together 만나다, 모으다 Vocabulary

meeting  모임, 회의Vocabulary

남 컴퓨터 동아리 모임이 언제야?

여 아직 확실하지 않은데. 지금 정하자.

남 토요일 오전 10시 어때?

여 미안해. 토요일은 안 되겠는데. 테니스 시합이 있거든. 

남  알겠어. 일요일 오전 10시나 오후 1시는 어때?

여 오후 1시가 좋겠다.

여 이번 토요일에 저는 박물관으로 여행을 갈 것입니다. 우

리는 박물관 앞에서 만날 것입니다. Brad와 Julie는 이후에 

저녁 식사를 하고 싶어합니다. Brad와 Julie는 저에게 저

녁 식사를 함께 하겠느냐고 물었습니다. 전 그들과 함께 저

녁 식사를 하러 갈 수 없습니다. 왜냐하면 이번 토요일은 저

희 엄마 생신이기 때문입니다. 저는 Brad에게 뭐라고 말해

야 할까요?

M When is the computer club meeting?

W I’m not sure yet. Let’s decide that now.

M How about Saturday at 10:00 a.m.?

W  Sorry. Saturday isn’t good. I have the 
tennis game. 

M  OK. Why not meet Sunday at 10:00 a.m. 
or 1:00 p.m.?

W 1:00 p.m. would be great.

W I will go on a trip to the museum this 
Saturday. We’ll meet in front of the museum. 
Brad and Julie want to go for dinner after. 
Brad asked me if I could join them for dinner. 
I can’t go for dinner with them, because this 
Saturday is my mom’s birthday. What should 
I say to Brad?

7 

8 



32

UNIT       WHERE IS THE MUSEUM?IX
 * Check Up p.55

 01 b   02 

 03 A  Hi. How can I get to the Museum of History?

  B Go straight and turn left at the corner. 

  A Turn left? 

  B Yes. It’s next to the library. It has a big dragon in front.

  A Thanks.

01

 W  Excuse me. Where’s the nearest subway 
station?

M It’s over there.

W By the bank?

M  No. Just past the market. Right there in 
front of the hospital.

W Oh, I see. Thanks.

여 실례합니다. 가장 가까운 지하철 역이 어디인가요?

남 저쪽에 있습니다.

여 은행 옆에요?

남 아뇨. 마켓 바로 지나서요. 저기 병원 바로 앞에 있어요. 

여 오, 알겠습니다. 고맙습니다. 

Check Up Scripts

02

[The answering machine beeps.] 
M  Hi, Jane. It’s Sam. Here are the directions 
to my house. From the subway, go straight. 
Go to Maple Street. Then, turn right. Walk 
towards the big soccer field. My house is 
across from the soccer field.

03

A  Hi. How can I get to the Museum of History?

B Go straight and turn left at the corner. 

A Turn left?

B  Yes. It’s next to the library. It has a big 
dragon in front.

A Thanks.

[자동 응답기 소리] 

남 안녕, Jane. 나 Sam이야. 여기 우리 집으로 오는 길이

야. 지하철에서부터 직진해. Maple가까지 가. 그러고 나서 

우회전 해. 큰 축구장을 향해 걸어와. 우리 집은 축구장 건너

편에 있어.  

A 안녕하세요. 역사 박물관에 어떻게 갈 수 있나요?

B 직진하시다가 모퉁이에서 왼쪽으로 도세요.

A 왼쪽으로 돌라고요?

B  네. 그것은 도서관 옆에 있어요. 앞에는 큰 용이 있고요. 

A 고맙습니다.

direction 방향, 위치, 길 안내     straight 곧장, 똑바로     street 거리, 가     turn 돌다     right 오른쪽의     
towards ~을 향하여     across from ~의 건너편에     soccer fi eld 축구장 Vocabulary

Vocabulary subway station 지하철역     past ~을 지나서     market 시장, 마켓     hospital 병원

Vocabulary history 역사     left 왼쪽의     corner 모퉁이, 코너     next to ~의 옆에     dragon 용     in front 앞쪽에
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Actual Test  1 ④    2 ②    3 ①    4 ③    5 ④    6 ③    7 ⑤    8 ⑤                   | p.56

여 안녕, Jill. 네가 부탁한 길 안내야. 너희 집에서 John
가까지 직진해. 그러고 나서 우회전을 해. John가를 따라 

Rose가까지 가. 좌회전 해. Rose가를 따라서 Pine가까지 

가. 그러고 나서 좌회전해. 도서관은 오른쪽에 있어. 

W Hi, Jill. Here are the directions you asked 
for. From your house, go straight to John 
Street. Then turn right. Go along John Street 
to Rose Street. Turn left. Follow Rose Street 
until you get to Pine Street. Then, turn left. 
The library is on the right.

1 

여  실례합니다.  이 거리에 이탈리아 레스토랑이 있나요?

남 이탈리아요? 아뇨. 어느 레스토랑을 찾고 계신데요?

여  Mario’s요. 제 친구가 그게 Peter가에 있다고 했는데요.

남  여기는 Peter가가 아니에요. Garden가에요. Peter가
는 저 길 너머에 있는 거에요.

여  오! 알겠습니다. 감사합니다. 

남 실례합니다. 부산에서 오는 기차가 어디에 도착하나요?

여  죄송합니다. 들리지가 않네요. 기차가 너무 시끄러워서

요. 다시 말씀해주시겠어요?

남 부산에서 오는 기차요. 어디에 도착하나요?

여  오, 바로 여기요. 하지만 늦을 거에요. 한 시간 후에 도

착합니다. 제과점에서 기다리실 수 있어요. 거기 커피가 

맛있거든요.

남 괜찮습니다. 감사합니다. 전 슈퍼마켓에 가려고 해요.

여  아, 이 거리 아래 모퉁이에 좋은 슈퍼마켓이 있어요.

W  Excuse me. Is there an Italian restaurant on 
this street?

M  Italian? No. Which restaurant are you 
looking for?

W  Mario’s. My friend said it’s on Peter Street.

M  This isn’t Peter Street. This is Garden Road. 
Peter Street is the one over that way.

W  Oh! I see. Thanks.

M  Excuse me. Where does the train from 
Busan arrive?

W  Sorry. I can’t hear you. The trains are too 
loud. Could you say that again?

M  The train from Busan. Where does it 
arrive? 

W  Oh, right here. But it’s late. It won’t arrive 
for another hour. You can wait in the 
bakery. They have good coffee. 

M  That’s OK. Thanks. I’ll go to the 
supermarket. 

W  Ah, there’s a nice supermarket down the 
street at the corner.

2 

3 

Vocabulary road 도로, 가     over ~을 넘어서

Vocabulary go along ~을 따라서 가다     follow 따라 가다 

Vocabulary loud 시끄러운     bakery 제과점, 빵집     supermarket 슈퍼마켓 
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[자동 응답기 소리]

여 안녕, Jackson. 오늘 굉장한 자전거 여행을 했어. 우리

는 총 15시간을 달렸어! 우리는 다리에서 만났어. 처음에는 

강을 따라 10km 달렸지. 우리는 병원에서 좌회전해서 시골

길을 따라 20km를 갔어. 폭포에 다다라서 거기서 점심을 먹

었지. 다음 번에는 너도 우리랑 함께 가면 좋겠다. 

① 남 축구장이 어디 있나요?

 여  직진하세요. 그것은 모퉁이 돌면 있어요. 

② 남 도서관이 음반 가게 옆에 있나요?

 여 아뇨. 도서관은 뮤직 홀 옆에 있어요. 

③ 남 영화관이 어디에 있나요?

 여  오, 고맙습니다. 전 정말 영화를 보러 가고 싶어요. 

④ 남 John가에는 어떻게 가야 하나요?

 여  죄송합니다. 모르겠는데요. 

⑤ 남 실례합니다. 우체국을 찾고 있는데요.

 

 여 오, 네. 길 바로 건너편에 있어요.

[The answering machine beeps.]

W Hi, Jackson. I had a great cycling trip 
today. We rode for a total of 15 hours! We met 
at the bridge. First, we rode 10 kilometers 
along the river. We turned left at the hospital 
and followed a country road for 20 kilometers. 
We got to a waterfall, and had lunch there. I 
hope you can join us next time.

① M  Where is the soccer field?

 W  Go straight. It’s around the corner.

② M  Is the library next to a music store?

 W  No. It’s next to the music hall. 

③ M Where’s the movie theater?

 W  Oh, thanks. I’d love to go see a movie.

④ M How can I get to John Street?

 W  I’m sorry. I don’t know.

⑤ M  Excuse me. I’m looking for the post 
office.

 W  Oh, yes. That’s just across the street.

5 

6 

Vocabulary sign 신호, 간판     confused 혼란스러운

Vocabulary total 총, 전체의     country 시골     waterfall 폭포

Vocabulary
around the corner 모퉁이를 돈 곳에, 아주 가까운    music store 음반 가게    music hall 뮤직 홀     
movie theater 영화관

남 실례합니다. 가장 가까운 은행이 어디에 있나요?

여 저 쪽에 하나 있어요.

남 다시 말씀해주시겠어요?

여 저기, 저 가게 옆이요. 

남 죄송합니다만, 어느 가게요? 

여 노란 간판이 있는 저 가게요.

남 정말 죄송합니다만, 노란 간판이 보이지 않는데요. 

M  Excuse me. Where’s the nearest bank?

W There’s one over there.

M Excuse me?

W Over there, next to that store.

M Sorry, what store?

W That store with the yellow sign.

M  I’m really sorry, but I don’t see a yellow 
sign.

4 



UNIT 10 | 35

여 Watson 뮤직 홀에서 노래 대회가 있어.

남 가야겠다. 언제야?

여 8월 18일 토요일이야. 

남 Watson 뮤직 홀이 어디야?

여  Watson가에 있다고 써 있는데. 학교에서 John가를 따

라서 곧장 가. 그러고 나서 Watson가로 좌회전이야.

남 쉬워 보이는데.

여 Family 교회 바로 옆이야.

W  There’s a singing contest at the Watson 
Music Hall. 

M We should go. When is it?

W Saturday, August 18th.

M Where is the Watson Music Hall?

W  It says it’s on Watson Street. From school, 
go straight down John Street. Then turn 
left to Watson Street.

M That sounds easy. 

W It’s right beside the Family Church.

8 

Vocabulary parking lot 주차장     map 지도

Vocabulary contest 대회, 시합

UNIT      I’M PROUD OF YOU! X
 * Check Up p.61

 01 a  02 1.Yes  2.No 

 03 A You look very nice in that dress.

  B Thank you! I’m taking Jessica out for lunch. It’s her birthday. 

  A How sweet of you! Well, say happy birthday to her for me.

  B I will, Grandpa. She’ll be glad to hear that.

남 거기 어떻게 가는지 아니?

여 물론이지. Pine가를 따라 가서 좌회전해. 

남  우린 아직 좌회전을 안 했잖아. 아빠가 20분 걸릴 거라

고 하셨는데.

여 글쎄, 엄마는 45분 걸릴 거라고 하셨는걸.

남 우회전해서 저 주차장으로 가자. 길을 물어보고 싶어.

여 이봐. 우린 지도를 따라가고 있는걸. 

M Do you know how to get there?

W  Of course. Go down Pine Street and turn 
left.

M  We haven’t turned left yet. Dad said that it 
would take 20 minutes.

W   Well, Mom said that it would take 45 
minutes.

M  Let’s turn right into that parking lot. I want 
to ask for directions. 

W Come on. We are following the map.

7 
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02

M  Clara! Congratulations! I’m very proud of 
you!

W Thanks! I’m happy.

M You worked hard.

W It’s my first award.

M  You’ll get many more. You play the violin 
so beautifully.

W Let’s go show Mom. She’ll be surprised.

남 Clara! 축하해! 네가 정말 자랑스럽구나!

여 고마워요! 전 행복해요.

남 넌 열심히 했지.

여 제가 처음으로 받은 상이에요.

남  넌 더 많이 받게 될 거야. 넌 바이올린을 정말 아름답게 

연주하잖니.

여 엄마께도 보여드리러 가요. 놀라실 거에요.

congratulations 축하, 축하해      proud 자랑스러운     award 상Vocabulary

clear 맑은, 깨끗한     bright  밝은, 환한     grass  풀, 잔디     simple  단순한, 소박한, 간단한 
go through 통과하여 가다Vocabulary

03

A You look very nice in that dress.

B  Thank you! I’m taking Jessica out for lunch. 
It’s her birthday. 

A  How sweet of you! Say happy birthday to 
her for me.

B I will, Grandpa. She’ll be glad to hear that.

A 그 드레스 입으니 정말 멋져보여.

B  고마워요! Jessica 데리고 점심 먹으러 가려고요. 

그녀의 생일이거든요. 

A 정말 착하구나! 생일 축하한다고 전해주렴. 

B 그럴게요, 할아버지. 그녀가 들으면 기뻐할 거에요. 

Vocabulary sweet 달콤한, 착한, 친절한, 자상한

Actual Test  1 ①    2 ③    3 ②    4 ④    5 ②   6 ①    7 ②    8 ①                   | p.62

여 제 남동생이 이 로봇 정말 좋아하겠는데요.

남  그래요. 그건 매우 인기가 있어요. 

여 비싸 보이는데요.

W My brother would love this robbot.

M  Yes. It’s very popular.

W It looks expensive.

1 

01

M What a beautiful picture, Laura! 

W I’m glad you like it.

M  I love the clear blue sky and bright green 
grass. 

W I wanted to draw a simple picture. 

M  Yes. Just grass, a tree and a road going 
through. Well done!

남 정말 아름다운 그림이다, Laura!

여 네가 좋아하니까 기쁘다.

남  맑은 파란 하늘과 밝은 초록색 잔디가 정말 마음에 들어.

여 소박한 그림을 그리고 싶었어.

남  그래. 단지 잔디, 나무 한 그루, 그리고 가로지르는 길 하

나가 있네. 잘했어! 

Check Up Scripts
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robot 로봇     expensive 비싼     on sale 세일(할인판매) 중     wrap 싸다, 포장하다     customer 고객, 손님      
clerk 점원     waiter 웨이터     husband 남편     wife 아내

Vocabulary

여 샌드위치 만드는 걸 방금 끝냈어.

남 맛있어 보인다. 이건 뭐야?

여  과일 샐러드야. 그리고 구운 치킨과 쿠키를 먹어볼 수 

있고, 케이크도 있어. 

남 네가 케이크도 만들었어?

여 케이크는 샀어. 하지만 다른 건 다 내가 만들었어.

남 와, 넌 정말 훌륭한 요리사구나. 

W I just finished making the sandwiches.

M They look tasty. What’s this?

W  A fruit salad. And you can try roasted 
chicken and cookies. And there’s a cake. 

M You made a cake, too?

W  I bought the cake, but I made  
everything else.

M Wow, you are such a great cook. 

2 

fi nish 끝내다, 완성하다     roasted 구운    else 그 밖의, 또 다른    cook 요리사 Vocabulary

남 늦어서 미안해. 오래 기다렸어?

여 아니, 사실 아냐. 무슨 일 있었어?

남 음, 내 남동생이 수학에서 A+를 받았거든. 

여 잘됐구나! 잘했네!

남 그래서 아이스크림 사주러 데리고 나갔어.

M Sorry, I’m late. Were you waiting long?

W No, not really. What happened?

M  Well, my younger brother got an A+ in 
math.

W Good for him! Well done!

M So I took him out for ice cream.

3 

남  과학은 정말 재미있어. 난 크면 과학을 가르치고 싶어.

여 나도 과학을 좋아해. 하지만 나는 동물을 정말 좋아해.

남  넌 어떤 직업을 갖고 싶어?

여 글쎄, 난 의사 같은 것이 되고 싶어.

남  동물들도 의사가 필요하지.

여 맞아. 그래, 그게 내가 되고 싶은 거야.

M  Science is so interesting. I want to teach 
science when I grow up .

W I like science, too. But I love animals. 

M  What kind of job do you want?

W Well, I’d like to be some kind of doctor. 

M  Animals need doctors, too.

W That’s right. So that’s what I hope to be. 

4 

animal doctor 수의사     pet store 애완 동물 가게 Vocabulary

남  사실, 지금 할인 중이에요. 30달러 밖에 안해요.

여  빨간 색으로 있나요? 제 남동생이 빨간색을 좋아해서요.

남  오, 네. 여기 있어요. 포장해 드릴까요?

여 네, 부탁합니다. 그의 생일 선물이거든요.

M  Actually, it’s on sale right now. It’s only 
$30.

W  Do you have a red one? My brother likes 
red.

M  Oh, yes. Here you are. Would you like it 
wrapped?

W Yes, please. It’s for his birthday.
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present 선물     kitchen counter 부엌 조리대     fl oor 바닥, 마루Vocabulary

여 안녕, Simon! 노래 했니? 우승했어? 

남  아직 아냐. 너무 걱정돼. 내가 노래할 수 있을 것 같지가 

않아. 

여 Simon! 물론 넌 노래 할 수 있어. 긴장을 풀어봐. 

남  노래하는 모든 사람들이 너무 잘해. 

여 Simon, 넌 대회에서 가장 노래 잘 하는 사람이야.

남  고마워. 그렇게 좋게 말해주다니! 

W Hi, Simon! Did you sing? Did you win?

M  Not yet. I’m so worried. I don’t think I can 
sing.

W  Simon! Of course you can sing. Just 
relax. 

M  All the singers are so good.

W  Simon, you are the best singer in the 
contest.

M  Thanks. What a nice thing to say! 

6 

win 이기다, 우승하다     relax 느긋이 쉬다, 진정하다, 긴장을 풀다Vocabulary

남 뭘 먹을 거니?

여 난 치킨 샐러드를 먹으려고.

남  그게 전부야? 네가 얼마나 감자 튀김을 좋아하는지 아

는데. 난 피자 두 조각이랑 감자 튀김 먹을 건데.

여  난 요새 건강에 좋은 음식을 먹으려고 노력 중이야. 정

말 훨씬 몸이 좋아진 것 같아.

남  잘됐다. 

여 뭐 좀 마실래? 난 오렌지 주스 먹을거야.

남  물론. 난 콜라를 먹을게. 

M What are you going to get?

W I’ll get the chicken salad.

M  Is that all? I know how you love fries. I’m 
having two slices of pizza and fries.

W  I’m trying to eat healthy food these days. 
I really feel better. 

M Good for you.

W  Do you want anything to drink? I’m having 
some orange juice. 

M Sure. I’ll get some coke.

7 

fries  프렌치 프라이, 감자 튀김     healthy 건강한, 건강에 좋은     these days 요즘, 요새Vocabulary

남 생일 축하해, Lisa! 네 선물은 부엌에 있단다. 문을 열어

봐. 네 아침 식사가 테이블 위에 있어. 주위를 둘러 보렴. 네 

선물이 어디 있을까? 부엌 조리대에는 없어. 그것은 그림이 

있는 벽 옆에 있단다. 보이니? 그것은 테이블 근처의 바닥에 

있단다. 찾았니? 잘했어!

M Happy Birthday, Lisa! Your present is in 
the kitchen. Open the door. Your breakfast 
is on the table. Look around. Where is your 
present? It’s not on the kitchen counter. It’s 
by the wall where the picture is. Do you see 
it? It’s on the floor near the table. Did you find 
him? Well done!

5 
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UNIT       THAT’S TOO BAD.XI
 * Check Up p.67

 01 a   02  1. likes  2. embarrassed

 03 A What’s wrong, Ken?

  B My dog died yesterday.

  A I’m sorry to hear that. Was he sick?

  B Yeah. He was old and sick. 

  A Well, look on the bright side. Now he’s at rest. 

  B Yeah. I’m so sad though. 

01

W Oh, no!

M What’s wrong?

W My vegetable garden! Look!

M What is that? A cat?

W  No. It’s a baby rabbit. It’s eating all my 
beans. 

M  That’s too bad. It’s really cute though. 
And, it hasn’t eaten the carrots yet.

여 오, 안돼!

남 무슨 문제야?

여 내 야채 밭! 봐!

남 저게 뭐야? 고양이인가?

여 아냐. 아기 토끼야. 내 콩을 모조리 먹고 있어. 

남  안됐다. 하지만 정말 귀엽구나. 그래도 아직 당근은 먹

지 않았네. 

Check Up Scripts

02

M I can’t stand our new history teacher.

W Really? I think she’s nice.

남 난 우리 역사 선생님 못 참겠어.

여 정말? 난 좋다고 생각하는데.

bean 콩     carrot  당근Vocabulary

[자동 응답기 소리]

남 안녕, Nancy. 난 Jim이야. 난 네가 학교 소풍이 취소되

어서 실망했다는 걸 알아. 당연해. 난 너에게 모든 걸 준비하는 

일을 정말 잘했다고 말해주고 싶었단다. 비가 온 건 네 잘못이 

아니야. 다음 달에는 우리가 소풍을 갈 수 있기를 바란다.

[The answering machine beeps.]

M Hi, Nancy. This is Jim. I know you are 
disappointed that the school picnic was 
cancelled. It’s natural. I wanted to tell you 
that you did a great job arranging everything. 
It’s not your fault that it rained. I hope we can 
have the picnic next month.

8 

disappointed 실망한     cancel 취소하다     natural 자연스러운, 당연한     arrange 준비하다, 정리하다     
fault 잘못 

Vocabulary
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Vocabulary sick 아픈     bright side 밝은 면     rest 휴식

Actual Test  1 ④    2 ③    3 ①    4 ⑤    5 ④    6 ③    7 ④    8 ⑤                   | p.68

여 난 공원에서 걷는 걸 정말 좋아해. 정말 좋아. 

남  전만큼 좋지는 않아. 주위에 널려 있는 빈 음식 상자들 

좀 봐.

여 오, 정말 싫다. 사람들은 왜 저렇게 하지? 

남  그리고 강에 있는 저 플라스틱 병들 좀 봐.

여 정말 화가 나네.

W  I love walking in the park. It’s so nice.

M  It’s not as nice as it used to be. Look at 
the empty food boxes lying around.

W  Oh, I really hate that. Why do people do 
that?

M  And look at all those plastic bottles in the 
river. 

W  That really makes me mad.

1 

as it used to be 전처럼     empty 빈     plastic 플라스틱     bottle 병     mad 정말 화난Vocabulary

여 Nathan. 너 안색이 아주 안 좋은데.

남 심한 감기에 걸렸어. 

여 그런 이야기를 들어 유감이구나. 의사에게 가야겠네.

남 아마 내일쯤.

여 집에 가서 쉬는 게 어때?

남 숙제를 다 끝내야 하는 걸.

여 그럼, 약을 좀 먹고, 뜨거운 물을 마셔봐.

W Nathan. You look terrible.

M I have a bad cold.

W  I’m sorry to hear that. You should see a 
doctor. 

M Maybe tomorrow.

W Why don’t you go home and rest?

M I have to finish my homework.

W Well, take some pills, and drink hot water. 

2 

embarrassing 당황스러운    textbook 교과서Vocabulary

03

A What’s wrong, Ken?

B My dog died yesterday.

A I’m sorry to hear that. Was he sick?

B Yeah. He was old and sick. 

A  Well, look on the bright side. Now he’s at 
rest. 

B  Yeah. I’m so sad though. 

A 무슨 일이야, Ken?

B 우리 개가 어제 죽었거든.

A 그런 이야기를 들어 유감이구나. 아팠었니?

B 응. 늙고 아팠어. 

A 음, 밝은 면을 봐. 이제 그는 쉬고 있잖아.

B 그래. 하지만 정말 슬프다. 

M  She always asks me questions that I can’t 
answer. It’s embarrassing. 

W  Well, you shouldn’t be surprised. You 
never read the textbook.

남  그녀는 항상 내가 대답할 수 없는 질문을 하시거든. 당

황스러워.

여  글쎄, 네가 놀랄 일이 아니잖아. 넌 교과서를 전혀 보지 

않으니까 말이야.
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남 Wilson씨. 저는 과학 대회에서 좋은 시간을 보냈습니

다. 일등상을 받아서 정말 기뻤어요. 저희 부모님은 저를 매

우 자랑스러워 하십니다. 저는 과학을 정말 좋아하고, 언젠

가 대학에서 가르치고 싶습니다. 200달러의 상금 감사 드립

니다. 그것은 제가 대학에 가는데 도움이 될 것입니다.

남 공지 봤어? 5일 월요일 영어 수업이 취소된대. 

여 정말? 어느 수업?

남 영어 403, 3번 교실.

여  그 소식을 소식 듣게 되어 기뻐. 그 수업은 아침 7시에 

시작하잖아. 너무 이르단 말이야!

남  난 아냐. 이제 그 수업은 오후 8시에 할 거야. 난 금요일 

밤에 외출할 계획이었단 말이야! 

M Mr. Wilson. I had a great time at the 
science contest. I was so excited to get first 
prize. My parents are very proud of me. I love 
science and hope to teach at a university 
one day. Thank you for the $200 prize. It will 
help me go to college.

M  Did you see the notice? English class is 
cancelled on Monday the 5th.

W Really? Which class?

M  English 403, in room 3.

W  I’m glad to hear that. That class starts at 
7:00 a.m. It’s so early! 

M  Not me. Now it will be held on Friday at 
8:00 p.m. I was planning to go out Friday 
night!

4 

5 

prize 상     university 대학교      college 대학Vocabulary

notice 공지, 통지     reschedule 일정을 변경하다 Vocabulary

남  이번 여름에 네가 프랑스에 간다고 들었어. 너는 행복하

겠다. 

여 사실 안 그래. 약간 불안한걸. 난 불어를 못하거든. 

남 오, 난 불어 좀 할 줄 아는데.

여 와! 나 좀 가르쳐 줄 수 있어?

남 물론이지. 넌 걱정 할 필요가 없어.

여 좋아. 이제 좀 안심이다. 고마워.

M  I heard you’re going to France this 
summer. You must be happy.

W  Not really. I’m a little nervous. It is 
because I can’t speak French.

M Oh, I can speak a little French.

W Wow! Could you teach me some?

M Sure. You don’t need to worry. 

W OK. Now I am relieved a little. Thanks.

3 

must be ~임에 틀림없다     French 프랑스의, 불어     worry 걱정하다    relieved 안심되는Vocabulary

terrible 끔찍한, 지독한     cold 감기     pill 알약Vocabulary

남 고마워. 그렇게 해볼게.M Thanks. I’ll try that.

① 남  네가 집에 그렇게 일찍 가야 한다니 유감이다. 

 

 여 나도 가고 싶지 않은데, 공부를 해야 해.

① M  It’s a pity that you have to go home so 
early.

 W  I don’t want to go, but I have to study.

6 
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forever 영원히     romantic 낭만적인, 로맨틱한    mystery 미스터리, 수수께기     hill 언덕     used 중고의    
for sale (주인이) 팔려고 내놓은     hardcover 딱딱한 표지의 책 Vocabulary

남 안녕하세요. 전 방학 때 읽을 게 있으면 좋겠는데요.

여 「나의 가장 위대한 모험」은 어때요?

남 좋아 보이네요. 좋아요. 그리고 하나 더요.

여 「영원한 친구들」은 매우 낭만적이에요.

남  음 … 그건 안 할래요. 오, 「언덕 위의 미스터리」로 

할게요. 

여 잘 고르셨어요. 정말 재미있어 하실 거에요.

남 그렇게 말해주시니 기쁘네요.

M  Hi. I’d like something to read during my 
vacation.

W How about My Greatest Adventure?

M That sounds good. OK. And one more.

W Friends Forever is very romantic.

M  Umm ... Not that one. Oh, I’ll take Mystery 
on the Hill.

W Good choice. You’ll really enjoy them.

M I’m glad to hear that. 

7 

accident 사고     hurt 해치다, 다치게 하다     hit 부딪치다     fall off 떨어지다     cut 부상Vocabulary

여 제 친구가 그가 겪은 사고에 대해 이야기해 주었습니다. 

그는 자전거를 타고 있었는데, 어떤 개가 그의 앞으로 달려왔

습니다. 그는 개를 다치게 하지 않기 위해 방향을 틀었습니다. 

하지만 나무에 부딪치고 말았습니다. 그는 자전거에서 떨어졌

습니다. 그는 팔과 다리에 많은 부상을 입었습니다.

W My friend told me about an accident he 
had. He was riding his bicycle and a dog 
ran in front of him. He turned so he would not 
hurt the dog. But he hit a tree. He fell off his 
bicycle. He has a lot of cuts on his arms and 
legs.

8 

disappointed 실망한     blue 우울한     embarrassed 당황스러운     nervous 초조한, 불안한     
art contest 미술 대회     proud 자랑스러운 

Vocabulary

② 남  우리가 경기에서 이기지 못했다니 정말 놀랐어. 

 

 여  그래. 너무 실망이야. 

③ 남  넌 오늘 우울해 보여. 무슨 일 있어?

 여  힘내. 내일은 더 좋아질 거야.  

④ 남  Lisa가 너에게 인사했을 때, 당황했니?

 

 여  사실 아냐. 하지만 긴장했었어. 

⑤ 남  Kate가 미술 대회에서 우승했다는 소식을 듣고 정

말 기뻤어. 

 여  나도. 난 정말 우리 언니가 자랑스러워.

② M  I’m really surprised that we didn’t win 
the game.

 W  Yeah. I’m so disappointed.

③ M  You look blue today. What happened?

 W  Cheer up. Things will be better 
tomorrow.

④ M  Were you embarrassed when Lisa said 
hello to you?

 W  Not really. But I was nervous.

⑤ M  I was excited to hear that Kate won the 
art contest.

 W  Me, too. I’m really proud of my sister.
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UNIT         CAN YOU SPEAK CHINESE?XII
 * Check Up p.73

 01 1. O   2. X   3. O   02 1. Yes   2. No   3. Yes

 03 A I have no idea how to do this math problem. Can you help me?

  B Sure, I can. Let me see.

  A I really don’t know anything about this kind of math.

  B No problem.

01

W  I don’t know how to ride a bicycle. It looks 
fun.

M You can learn. All you need is practice.

W  I guess so. But I can rollerblade. It’s so 
much fun.

M  I’m not good at rollerblading. I’m better at 
skateboarding.

여 난 자전거 탈 줄 몰라. 재미있어 보인다. 

남 너도 배울 수 있어. 네가 필요한 건 연습뿐이야.

여  그럴 것 같아. 하지만 난 롤러 블레이드는 탈 수 있어. 

그거 정말 재미있어.

남  난 롤러 블레이드는 잘 못 타. 난 스케이트 보드를 더 잘 

타. 

Check Up Scripts

02

M Wow, Julie! Did you draw that?

W Yeah. I like drawing birds. 

M  That’s amazing. It looks like it could fly 
away.

W Thanks, Darrel. What do you like to draw?

M  I’m not good at drawing animals. But I 
can draw cars.

03

A  I have no idea how to do this math 
problem. Can you help me?

B Sure, I can. Let me see.

A  I really don’t know anything about this 
kind of math.

B No problem.

남 와, Julie! 네가 그걸 그렸니?

여 응. 난 새 그리기를 좋아해.

남 놀랍다. 그게 날아가 버릴 수 있을 것처럼 보인다.

여 고마워, Darrel. 넌 뭐 그리길 좋아하니?

남 난 동물 그리기는 잘 못 해. 하지만 차는 그릴 수 있어.

A  난 이 수학 문제를 어떻게 풀어야 할 지 모르겠어. 날 도

와줄 수 있어? 

B 물론, 도와줄 수 있지. 어디 보자. 

A 난 이런 수학 같은 것에 대해서는 정말 아는 바가 없어. 

B 문제 없어.

practice 연습     rollerblading 롤러 블레이드 타기     skateboarding 스케이트 보드 타기     
be good at ~을 잘 하다Vocabulary

fl y away 날아가 버리다     draw 그림 그리다Vocabulary
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lift 들다, 들어올리다     lose weight 체중을 줄이다     trainer 트레이너     gold medal 금메달     
impossible 불가능한

Vocabulary

여 이 선풍기는 고장 난 것 같은데. 

남 내가 좀 볼게. 난 물건들 고치기를 잘 하거든.

여 물건 고치는 법을 어떻게 배웠어?

남  항상 우리 아빠를 지켜봐. 그는 어떤 것이든 고치실 수 

있거든. 

여  이 퍼즐을 못 풀겠어. 모든 사람들이 이런 퍼즐을 쉽게 

푸는 것 같은데.

남  많은 사람들은 쉬운 것만 하거든. 이것은 가장 높은 수

준인 것 같은데.

여 정말?

남  그래. 그리고 넌 거의 다 한 것 같은데. 내 생각에 넌 아

주 잘 하는걸.

여 좋아. 이제 내가 이걸 할 수 있다는 걸 알았어!

W This fan seems to be broken.

M  Let me take a look at it. I’m good at fixing 
things.

W  How did you learn how to fix things?

M  I watch my dad all the time. He can fix 
anything.

W  I can’t solve this puzzle.It seems everyone 
else can solve these puzzles easily.

M  Many people only do the easy ones. This 
one is the highest level.

W  Really?

M  Yeah. And it looks like you’re almost done. 
I think you’re doing great.

W  OK. Now I know I can do this!

2 

3 

fan 선풍기, 환풍기      broken 고장 난, 부서진     fi x 고치다 Vocabulary

Actual Test  1 ④    2 ①    3 ③    4 ②    5 ③    6 ④    7 ①    8 ⑤                   | p.74

① 여 내가 이걸 들 수가 없어. 좀 도와줄래?

 

 남 물론이지. 문제 없어.   

② 남  우리 누나가 네가 체중 줄이는 것을 도와줄 수 있

어. 그녀는 트레이너거든. 

 여 오, 좋아. 고마워.

③ 여 네가 그걸 들 수 있을지 모르겠다. 

 남 오, 괜찮아. 난 150kg을 들 수 있어. 

④ 남 그녀는 126kg을 들 수 있어. 그녀가 이길 거야!

 여 그래. 그녀가 금메달을 딸 거야!  

⑤ 여 내가 이것을 들 수 있을지 모르겠다.

 남  내 생각에 그건 불가능해. 

① W  I can’t lift this. Could you please help 
me?

 M Sure, I can. No problem.

② M  My sister can help you to lose weight. 
She’s a trainer.

 W Oh, I’d love that. Thanks.

③ W I don’t know if you can lift that.

 M Oh, that’s OK. I can lift 150kg.

④ M She can lift 126kg. She’s going to win!

 W  Yeah. She’s going to get the gold 
medal!

⑤ W I have no idea how I can lift this.

 M I think that it’s impossible.

1 

puzzle 수수께기, 퍼즐     level 수준, 단계Vocabulary
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남  너는 뭘 잘 하니? 

여  난 바이올린을 연주할 수 있어. 하지만 난 선천적인 재

능은 없어.

남 무슨 말이야?

여  어떤 사람들은 바이올린 연주를 아주 잘하는데. 하지만 

그들은 연습을 열심히 하는 것처럼 보이지 않거든.

남  그건 사실이 아니야. 그들은 수년간 정말 열심히 연습을 

해. 그들이 그렇게 잘하게 되는 건 쉬운 일이 아니야.

여  그래… 네 말이 맞는 거 같아. 나도 바이올린을 매일 연

습해야 할 것 같다.

M  What are you good at? 

W  I can play the violin. But I don’t have a 
natural talent.

M What do you mean?

W  Some people play the violin very well. But 
it seems they don’t practice hard.

M  That’s not true. They practice very hard 
for many years. It’s not easy for them to 
be so good.

W  Yes … Maybe you are right. I need to 
practice my violin every day.

4 

natural talent 선천적인 재능     practice 연습하다      Vocabulary

남 단체 스포츠를 좋아하나요? 야구를 할 수 있나요? 학교 

단체 스포츠 동아리는 여러분이 필요합니다. 수요일 오후 4

시에 체육관에서 만납시다. 와서 단체 스포츠가 여러분을 위

해 무엇을 해줄 수 있는지 보세요.

M Do you like team sports? Can you play 
baseball? The school Team Sports Club 
needs you. Meet us in the gym on 
Wednesday at 4 p.m. Come and see what 
playing team sports can do for you.

5 

team 팀, 단체     gym 체육관Vocabulary

남 보세요, 엄마. 체스 강습 광고에요.

여 넌 체스 하는 법을 이미 알잖니.

남 하지만 아주 잘 하지는 못하는 걸요.

여 강습이 얼마이니?

남  하루 강습이 80달러에요. 하지만 한 달 강습을 들으면 

더 싸요.

여 알겠다. 너는 어느 수준이니?

남 2단계에요. 

여 좋아. 두 달 강습을 들어보렴.

M  Look, Mom. It’s an advertisement for 
chess lessons.

W You already know how to play chess.

M But I’m not very good at it.

W How much are they?

M  A one-day lesson is $80. But it’s cheaper 
if you take lessons for a month. 

W I see. What level are you?

M Level 2. 

W OK. You can take lessons for two months. 

6 

advertisement 광고     chess 체스     cheap 값이 싼     price 값, 가격 Vocabulary
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Chinese 중국의, 중국어    a bit 약간, 조금 Vocabulary

fall into ~에 빠지다    pond 연못     scared 두려운, 겁먹은     save 구하다     several 여러번의     
give up 포기하다     

Vocabulary

남 안녕, Jami. 뭐 하고 있니?

여 중국 영화를 보고 있어.

남 오! 너 중국어 할 수 있니?

여 조금. 하지만 이해는 조금 더 할 수 있어.

남 이 영화 재미있어 보인다.

여 그래. 매우 인기 있는 영화야.

남 그래, 무슨 이야기이니?

여 제가 연못에 빠졌을 때 나는 8살이었습니다. 전 수영할 

줄을 몰랐습니다. 너무 겁을 먹었지요. 저희 할아버지가 저

를 구해 주셨습니다. 그 사건 이후에, 전 수영하는 법을 배우

기로 결심했지요. 하지만 처음에는 어려웠어요. 전 물이 정

말로 무서웠거든요. 하지만 여러 번 강습을 받은 후, 재미있

어지기 시작했어요. 전 결코 포기하지 않았어요. 이제 저희 

할아버지, 할머니의 연못에 여름마다 수영하러 갑니다. 

M Hi, Jami. What are you doing?

W I’m watching a Chinese movie.

M Oh! Can you speak Chinese?

W A little, but I can understand a bit more.

M This movie looks good.

W Yeah. It’s a very popular movie.

M So, what’s the story about?

W I was 8 years old when I fell into a pond. I 
didn’t know how to swim. I was so scared. My 
grandfather saved me. After that accident, I 
decided to learn how to swim. But it was hard 
at first. I was really afraid of the water. But after 
several lessons, I began to have fun. I never 
gave up. Now I go swimming every summer 
in my grandparents’ pond. 

7 

8 
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03

① M  Martha, I’d like to introduce you to my 
friend, Jason.

 W Hi, Jason. I’m glad to meet you.

② M What does your sister look like?

 W She has long hair and brown eyes.

③ M Where is the nearest bus stop? 

 W Sorry, but I can’t. 

④ M How do you go to school?

 W I walk to school. 

① 남 Martha, 내 친구 Jason을 너에게 소개하고 싶어

 

 여 안녕, Jason. 만나서 반가워. 

② 남 네 여동생은 어떻게 생겼니?

 여 긴 머리와 갈색 눈을 가졌어. 

③ 남 가장 가까운 버스 정류장이 어디에 있나요?

 여 죄송합니다만, 전 할 수 없어요. 

④ 남 넌 학교에 어떻게 가니?

 여 나는 걸어서 학교에 가.

모의고사 1회 

01 ② 02 ④ 03 ③ 04 ① 05 ② 06 ④ 07 ④ 08 ⑤ 09 ② 10 ①

11 ⑤ 12 ① 13 ⑤ 14 ③ 15 ③ 16 ③ 17 ④ 18 ② 19 ④ 20 ①

01

W I needed a new winter coat. So I went to 
my favorite store. There were lots of coats. I 
liked the green one with lots of buttons. But 
it didn’t fit. The red one with lots of pockets 
was nice. But it was expensive. Then I saw 
the green one with a white stripe. It fit 
perfectly, and it was a good price. I’m all 
ready for winter now.

여 전 새 겨울 코트가 필요했습니다. 그래서, 제가 정말 좋

아하는 가게에 갔습니다. 많은 코트들이 있었습니다. 전 단

추가 많이 달린 초록색 코트가 마음에 들었습니다. 하지만 

그것은 맞지 않았습니다. 주머니가 많이 달린 빨간색 코트도 

멋있었습니다. 하지만, 그것은 비쌌습니다. 그러고 나서 전 

하얀색 줄무늬가 있는 초록색 코트를 보았습니다. 그건 완벽

하게 잘 맞았고, 가격도 괜찮았습니다. 전 이제 겨울 준비를 

완전히 마쳤답니다. 

02

M  Excuse me. I’m looking for the music 
store. 

W Pardon?

M The music shop. I can’t find it.

W  Oh, yes. Just follow Oak Street and turn 
right.

M  Walk to the end of this street and turn 
right?

W  Yes. It’s on your right. It’s beside the 
bookstore.

M Thank you. 

남 실례합니다. 전 음반 가게를 찾고 있는데요.

여 다시 말씀해 주시겠어요?

남 음반 가게요. 찾을 수가 없네요.

여 오, 네. 그냥 Oak가를 따라 가서, 오른쪽으로 도세요.

남 이 거리 끝까지 걸어가서 오른쪽으로 돌아요?

여 네. 그것은 당신 오른편에 있어요. 서점 옆에요. 

남 고맙습니다.
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07

W  That new Italian restaurant opens on 
Saturday.

M Why don’t we go there for dinner Sunday?

W  I’d love to, but I can’t. But I’m free on 
Tuesday.

M  Tuesday’s not good. What about 
Wednesday?

05

W Hi. Is the train from Daegu on time?

M No. I’m sorry. It’s late. 

W What time will it arrive at the station?

M I’m not sure yet.

W  Oh. I have to meet my friend. She’s on 
that train. 

M  We have a coffee shop. The coffee shop 
has a TV screen. It shows when the trains 
arrive.

여 안녕하세요. 대구에서 오는 기차 정시에 오나요?

남 아뇨. 죄송합니다. 늦습니다.

여 역에 몇 시에 도착할까요?

남 아직 확실히 모르겠는데요.

여  오. 전 제 친구를 만나야 하는데요. 그녀가 그 기차에 있

거든요.

남  저희는 커피숍이 있습니다. 커피숍에 TV 화면이 있거든

요. 그것이 언제 기차가 도착하는지 보여줍니다. 

06

M Did you do anything on the weekend?

W  Not much. I went to the movies and did 
some shopping. What about you?

M  I took the train to Sokcho, and went to the 
beach. 

W Was it fun?

M Oh, yes. But I’m really tired today.

W You should stay home next weekend.

남 주말에 뭐했니?

여 별로. 영화 보러 가고 쇼핑을 좀 했어. 넌?

남 난 속초로 기차를 타고 가서 해변에 갔어.

여 재미있었어?

남 오, 그럼. 하지만 오늘 정말 피곤하다.

여 넌 다음 주말에는 집에서 쉬어야겠네.

여 저 새 이탈리아 식당은 토요일에 문을 연대.

남 일요일에 저녁 먹으러 가보는 게 어때?

여  정말 그러고 싶은데, 나는 갈 수 없어. 하지만 화요일엔 

시간이 있는데.

남 화요일은 좋지 않은데. 수요일은 어때?

04

M Hi. I’m Peter. You’re new, right?

W Hi. Yes, I am. My name is Sally. 

M You look lost.

W I am lost. And I’m so confused.

M  Don’t worry. You’ll get used to it. Let me 
show you around.

W Oh, thanks! That would be a big help.

⑤ M What do you want to be? 

 W I want to be a writer. 

남 안녕하세요, 전 Peter에요. 새로 오셨죠, 맞죠?

여 안녕하세요. 네, 그래요. 제 이름은 Sally에요.

남 길을 잃으신 것 같은데요.

여 길을 잃었어요. 그리고, 정말 혼란스럽네요.

남  걱정하지 마세요. 익숙해 지실 거에요. 제가 구경시켜 

드릴게요.

여 오, 감사합니다! 큰 도움이 될 거에요.

⑤ 남 넌 뭐가 되고 싶니?

 여 난 작가가 되고 싶어. 
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10

W Brian! How’s your new school?

M I like it. But it’s a long ride on the subway.

W  Yeah. How’s your sister? I haven’t seen 
her in a while.

M  She’s well. She’s busy preparing for 
exams.

W Me, too. Oh, I have to go now.

M  OK. See you, Melissa. Good luck on your 
exams. 

11

M I hope you like this. I made it myself.

W  It looks delicious. What is it?

M  It’s grilled fish with rice. Go ahead. 

W  I’ve never tried this before. It’s really good.

M Thanks. Do you want some more?

09

W  Hello, sir.

M  Hi, Susan. What are you doing in the 
library? 

W  I need to do my history report. But I can’t 
find the books I need.

M  Oh, well, I’m sorting books right now. Can 
you come back at 4:00 p.m.? I’ll have 
some books for you by then.

여 Brian! 새 학교는 어떠니?

남 좋아. 하지만 지하철을 오래 타고 가야 해.

여 그렇구나. 네 여동생은 잘 지내? 못 본지 꽤 됐네.

남 잘 지내. 그녀는 시험 준비하느라고 바빠.

여 나도 그런데. 오, 나 지금 가야겠다.

남 그래. 나중에 봐, Melissa. 시험 잘 봐. 

남 네가 이걸 좋아했으면 좋겠다. 내가 직접 만들었어.

여 맛있어 보이는데. 이게 뭐야?

남 그릴에 구운 생선과 밥이야. 먹어봐. 

여 이건 한번도 먹어본 적 없는데. 정말 맛있다.

남 고마워. 더 먹을래?

여 안녕하세요, 아저씨.

남 안녕, Susan. 도서관에서 뭐 하고 있니?

여  역사 숙제를 해야 해서요. 그런데 제가 필요한 책을 찾

을 수가 없네요.

남  오, 음, 내가 지금 책을 분류하고 있는 중이거든. 오후 4

시에 다시 올래? 내가 그때까지 네게 필요한 책을 좀 구

해놓을게. 

W No. I have a class. How about Friday?

M OK. See you then.

여 안돼. 수업이 있어. 금요일은 어때?

남 좋아. 그 때 보자. 

08

W  Hi, Mathew. Are you finished with your 
exams? 

M  Yes. Math was at 8:00 a.m. Then, I had 
History at 11:30 a.m.

W  What exam did you take last?

M  English was at 3:00 p.m. and it was 
2 hours long!

W  Well done, Mathew. You did a great job.

여 안녕, Mathew. 시험 다 끝났니?

남  네. 수학이 오전 8시였고요. 그러고 나서, 오전 11시 30

분에 역사 시험을 봤어요.

여 마지막으로 본 게 무슨 시험이었니?

남 영어가 오후 3시였고요, 그게 2시간 짜리였어요!

여 잘했다, Mathew. 넌 잘 해냈어. 
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13

M  Hey, Gina. How are you getting to Busan?

W I’m not sure. The traffic will be heavy.

M Yeah. You shouldn’t drive. 

W  No. I won’t drive. I might take the bus. But 
it’s a long trip.

M You could fly.

W That’s kind of expensive though.

M How about the train?

W  Better idea. It’s fast and the price is good. 

남 안녕, Gina. 부산에는 어떻게 갈 거니?

여 잘 모르겠어. 교통이 아주 혼잡할 거라서.

남 그래. 운전해서 가면 안돼.

여  안되지. 난 운전 안 할 거야. 아마 버스를 탈 지도 몰라. 

하지만 오래 걸리는데. 

남 비행기를 타고 갈 수 있잖아.

여 하지만 그건 좀 비싸잖아.

남 기차는 어때?

여  더 좋은 생각이네. 그게 빠르고 가격도 괜찮아. 

12

M How was your trip to Jeju?

W  We had so much fun. We went swimming 
every day. 

M Sounds like fun. Did you go shopping?

W  Oh, yes. Here, I bought you a shirt.

M  Thanks. It’s really nice. That was sweet of 
you.

남 제주도 여행은 어땠니?

여 정말 재미있었어. 우린 매일 수영하러 갔어.

남 재미있었겠다. 쇼핑도 갔어?

여 오, 그럼. 여기 내가 네 셔츠를 사왔어.

남 고마워. 정말 멋있다. 정말 고마워.

14

W  Your birthday is next week. Why don’t you 
have a party with your friends?

M  Mom, actually, I’d like to go out with you 
and Dad.

W  Oh, OK. How about the zoo or the 
museum?

M  Well, what about lunch?

W  Ahh… you want to go to the new Italian 
restaurant.

M  Yes. Could we?

W Sure. That sounds like fun. 

여  네 생일이 다음 주이지. 친구들이랑 파티 하는 게 어떠

니?

남 엄마, 사실은, 전 엄마랑 아빠랑 외출하고 싶어요. 

여  오, 알았다. 동물원이나 박물관은 어떠니?

남 글쎄요.  점심 먹는 건 어때요?

여  아… 너 새 이탈리아 식당에 가고 싶구나.

남 네. 갈 수 있어요? 

여  물론이지. 재미있겠구나. 

15

[The telephone rings.] 

W Hey, Jerry. How’s your new puppy?

M Oh. He’s a lot of fun.

W What does he look like?

M  Well, he’s mostly brown. But he has black 
ears. 

W Will he get big? 

[전화 벨소리]

여 이봐, Jerry. 네 새 강아지는 잘 지내니?

남 오. 아주 재미있게 잘 지내.

여 어떻게 생겼니? 

남 음, 거의 갈색이야. 하지만 검은 귀를 가졌지.

여 그는 커질까? 
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18

M What are you doing, Laura?

W Trying to fix my new camera.

M You just bought it!

W  I know. Do you know anything about
cameras?

M Not much. Can you fix it by yourself? 

W No. I think that’s impossible.

M  You should return it and get your money 
back.

W Yes. I think that’s a better idea.

남 뭐 하고 있니, Laura?

여 내 새 카메라를 고치려고 하고 있어.

남 산 지 얼마 안 되었잖아!

여 알아. 너 카메라에 대해 좀 아니?

남 별로. 너 혼자 고칠 수 있어?

여 아니. 불가능할 것 같아.

남 넌 그걸 돌려주고 돈을 돌려받아야 해. 

여 그래. 그게 더 좋은 생각인 것 같다.

M Yes. He’ll get quite big. Why?

W I want to get a dog, but a small one.

남 응. 꽤 자라겠지. 왜?

여 개를 갖고 싶은데, 작은 걸로 원하거든.

16

W What are your plans for this weekend?

M  I’m going on a picnic with my friends on 
Saturday.

W That sounds like fun. 

M  Yes. I’m looking forward to it. I wonder 
what the weather will be like on Saturday.

W Well, I heard that it’s going to rain.

M  Oh, no! 

17

W Larry, you can snowboard, right?

M Yes. It’s so much fun.

W  I’ve never tried it. But I really want to 
learn. 

M You should take lessons.

W How much are they?

M  $20 for one lesson. But you can take 3 
lessons for $70 or 5 lessons for $80.

W I need 5 lessons for sure.

여 이번 주말에 어떤 계획이 있니?

남 토요일에 친구들이랑 소풍 가려고.

여 재미있겠다.

남  그래. 난 고대하고 있어. 토요일에 날씨가 어떨지 궁금

하네.

여 글쎄, 비가 온다고 들었는데.

남 오, 안돼! 

여 Larry, 너 스노우 보드 탈 줄 알지, 맞지?

남 응. 정말 재미있지.

여 난 한번도 타본 적이 없는데. 하지만, 정말 배우고 싶어.

남 강습을 받아야 해.

여 강습이 얼마야?

남  한 번 강습에 20달러. 하지만 70달러에 세 번, 혹은 80

달러에 다섯 번 강습을 들을 수 있어.

여 난 다섯 번 강습은 꼭 필요하겠는데. 

19

M My friends are not sure about their future. 
Some say they want to be actors. Others say 
that they hope to be doctors or teachers. But 
I know exactly what I want to do in the future. 

남 제 친구들은 미래에 대해 확신이 없습니다. 어떤 친구들

은 배우가 되고 싶다고 합니다. 또 어떤 친구들은 의사나 선

생님이 되고 싶다고 합니다. 하지만 전 제가 미래에 하고 싶

은 일이 무엇인지 확실히 압니다. 전 노래를 정말 좋아합니
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01

M  What’s the weather going to be like this 
week?

W  I heard that it will be sunny for most of the 
week.

M  Really? I’m going to the beach on 
Saturday. 

W  Oh, that’s too bad. It’s going to rain on 
Saturday.

M Well, maybe I’ll change my plans then.

20

M I like watching all kinds of movies. But I 
didn’t like the movie Space Wars. It was very 
disappointing. Many people said it was an 
excellent movie. I thought the acting was bad 
and the story was boring. It was a waste of 
my money. I won’t watch another movie by 
that movie director again.

남 전 모든 종류의 영화 보기를 좋아합니다. 하지만, 「우주 

전쟁」이라는 영화는 좋아하지 않았어요. 매우 실망스러웠습

니다. 많은 사람들이 그것이 훌륭한 영화라고 했지만요. 연기

도 나빴고, 이야기도 지루했던 것 같습니다. 돈 낭비였어요. 

전 다시는 그 영화 감독의 다른 영화를 보지 않을 겁니다. 

모의고사 2회 
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I love to sing. But I love to play the violin 
more. I will practice hard every day. And one 
day I will be famous.

다. 하지만 바이올린 연주하기를 더 좋아합니다. 전 매일 열

심히 연습할 것입니다. 그리고 언젠가 유명해질 것입니다. 

남 이번 주에 날씨가 어떨까?

여  한 주 대부분 화창할 거라고 들었는데.

남 정말? 토요일에 해변에 가야겠다.

여  오, 정말 안됐다. 토요일에는 비가 올 거야.

남  그럼, 계획을 바꿔야겠네.

02

W  Hey, Ross. Do you know that guy over 
there? That guy with the red necktie and  
white shirt by the window.

M The guy with the brown hair?

W  No. The guy beside the woman with 
blond hair. He’s got glasses.

M Oh. And he has black hair.

W  Yes. That’s the one. 

여  이봐, Ross. 저기 저 남자 아니? 창문 옆에 빨간 넥타

이를 매고 하얀 셔츠를 입고 있는 남자 말이야. 

남 갈색 머리의 남자?

여  아니. 금발 머리의 여자 옆에 있는 남자 말이야. 그는 안

경을 끼고 있어.

남 오. 그는 머리가 검은색이네. 

여 그래. 그 사람 말이야.
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03

W I can’t study anymore. I’m too hungry.

M  What? We just ate lunch. How can you be 
so hungry?

W  It’s 3:00 p.m. We ate lunch two hours ago. 
It’s time for a snack.

M  Well, let’s study for one more hour. Then 
we can go for pizza.

W OK, but can I eat that apple?

M Sure. Help yourself. 

04

M What do you want to do Sunday?

W I’m not sure. What about you?

M Maybe we could go to the mall.

W  Well, I don’t really want to. I’d rather do 
something outside.

M  Good idea. The weather is going to be 
nice.

W Let’s go walk along the river.

05

W I can’t believe I said that.

M Said what?

W I told Mary that I didn’t like Jane’s dress.

M Was Jane angry?

W Oh, no. Mary didn’t tell Jane what I said.

M So what’s the problem?

W  Mary has just the same dress as Jane. 
She wore it today. I just feel awful.

여 더 이상 공부를 못하겠어. 너무 배고파.

남  뭐? 우린 방금 점심 먹었잖아. 어떻게 그렇게 배가 고플 

수가 있지?

여  지금 오후 3시야. 우린 두 시간 전에 점심을 먹었다고. 

간식 먹을 시간이 됐지.

남  음, 한 시간만 더 공부하자. 그러고 나서 피자를 먹으러 

가자.

여 좋아, 그런데 그 사과 먹어도 돼?

남 물론이지. 마음껏 먹어.

남 일요일에 뭘 하고 싶니?

여 잘 모르겠는데. 넌?

남 아마 우린 쇼핑몰에 갈 수도 있지.

여  글쎄, 난 정말 가고 싶지 않은데. 밖에서 뭔가 하는게 더 

낫겠는데. 

남 좋은 생각이야. 날씨가 좋을 거니까.

여 강을 따라 산책하러 가자.

여 내가 그걸 말했다는 걸 믿을 수가 없어.

남 뭘 말했는데?

여 Mary에게 Jane의 드레스가 별로라고 말했거든.

남 Jane이 화가 났어?

여  오, 아니. Mary는 Jane에게 내가 말한 것을 말하지 않

았어.

남 그럼 뭐가 문제야?

여  Mary가 Jane과 똑 같은 드레스를 갖고 있지 뭐야. 오

늘 그걸 입었더라고. 정말 끔찍한 기분이다. 

M Sure. That’s my brother. 남 물론이지. 그는 우리 형이야. 

06

W  Mom said we can choose what to do 
during our vacation.

M  Oh… I want to go to the zoo, and to the 
beach.

W  That sounds like fun. I’d like to go to the 
art gallery.

여  엄마가 우리가 방학 동안 뭘 할지 선택해도 좋다고 

하셨어.

남 오… 난 동물원에 가고 싶어. 그리고 해변에도.

여  재미있겠다. 난 미술관에 가고 싶어.
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M  Really? During our vacation? Not me.

W OK. Well, what else do you want to do?

M  Umm… How about going the museum? 
I know you like that.

W Aww... Not bad. Anything else?

M  Let’s go to the pool, too.

09

M  I’m going to get a sandwich. Do you want 
anything?

W No, thanks. I’m full.

M  I’ll get a chicken sandwich and fries. Are 
you sure you don’t want anything?

W OK. I’ll have some green tea.

M And I’ll get some orange juice.

남 정말? 방학 동안? 난 싫어.

여  알았어. 그럼, 또 다른 거 뭐 하고 싶어?

남  음… 박물관에 가는 건 어때? 네가 그거 좋아하는 거 

아는데.

여  아… 괜찮아. 또 다른 건?

남 수영장에도 가자.

남 샌드위치 사러 가려고 하는데. 너도 뭐 좀 먹을래?

여 아니, 괜찮아. 난 배불러.

남  난 치킨 샌드위치와 감자 튀김을 먹을 거야. 정말 아무 

것도 안 먹을 거야?

여 좋아. 난 녹차를 마실게.

남 그리고 난 오렌지 주스를 먹을 거야.

07

W Did you see Jerry today?

M  Yes, Mom. I said that I was sorry for being 
mad at him. 

W What did he say?

M  He said that it was OK. And we shook 
hands.

W  I’m so glad. You two have been friends for 
a long time. 

M  I should not have been angry with him.

여 오늘 Jerry 봤니?

남  네, 엄마. 그에게 화낸 것에 대해 미안하다고 이야기했

어요.

여 그가 뭐라고 하든?

남 괜찮다고 했어요. 그리고 우리는 악수를 했어요.

여 정말 기쁘구나. 너희 둘은 오랫동안 친구였잖아.

남 그에게 화를 내면 안 되는 거였어요. 

08

M Hey. I know you. You’re Kelly Brown.

W Oh, wow! Sam Williams?

M Yes. It’s really nice to see you again.

W How are you?

M I’m great. How’s your family?

W We’re all fine. Thanks.

M Oh, here’s my train. Bye.

남 이봐. 나 너 아는데. 너 Kelly Brown이지.

여 오, 와! Sam Williams야?

남 그래. 다시 만나서 정말 반갑다.

여 어떻게 지내니?

남 잘 지내. 너희 가족은 어때?

여 우리는 모두 잘 지내. 고마워.

남 오, 내가 탈 기차가 왔다. 안녕. 

10

M I am so tired.

W Me, too. What time will we get there?

M We’ll get to the hotel at 11 p.m.

남 난 너무 피곤해.

여 나도. 몇 시에 거기에 도착할까?

남 우리는 밤 11시에 호텔에 도착할 거야.  
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11

W  This is pretty, but, it’s too big. Do you have 
a smaller one?

M Oh, yes. Here’s a medium. It’s 50% off.

W  That’s a good price. But it’s too casual for 
school.

M You could wear it to a party.

W  But my mom told me to buy a school 
dress. Sorry. 

12

W  Mr. Robinson, thanks for seeing me.

M  You said you’re not sure what to study in 
university.

W Yes. It’s so hard to choose.

M  What subjects do you like?

W Well, I’m not good at music or art. 

M  Are you good at science?

W  I’m OK at science. And I like computers. 
But I love math most of all.

여  이것 예쁜데요. 하지만, 너무 크네요. 더 작은 걸로 있나

요?

남  오, 네. 여기 중간 사이즈 있어요. 그건 50퍼센트 할인 

중입니다.

여  좋은 가격이네요. 하지만 학교에서 입기에는 너무 캐주

얼 하네요.

남 파티에 입고 갈 수도 있어요. 

여  하지만 저희 엄마는 학교에서 입을 옷을 사라고 하셨거

든요. 죄송합니다. 

여 Robinson씨, 저를 만나 주셔서 감사해요.

남 대학에서 뭘 공부하면 좋을지 모르겠다고 했지.

여 네. 선택하기가 정말 어려워요.

남 어떤 과목을 좋아하니?

여 글쎄요, 전 음악이나 미술은 못해요.

남 과학은 잘 하니?

여  과학은 괜찮게 해요. 그리고 컴퓨터를 좋아하고요. 무엇

보다 수학을 정말 좋아해요. 

W  I’m going right to bed. I’m not even going 
to shower. 

M  I’m going to relax and watch some TV. But 
I’ll take a shower first.

W I want to go swimming first in the morning.

M That sounds nice. I’ll join you. 

여 난 바로 잠자리에 들 거야. 샤워도 하지 않을래. 

남 난 쉬면서 TV를 좀 볼래. 하지만 먼저 샤워를 할 거야. 

여 아침에는 가장 먼저 수영을 하러 가고 싶다.

남 좋아. 나도 같이 갈래. 

13

W  Taxi! Hi. I need to get to the Star office 
building. 

M It’s on the other side of town. 

W  I have a meeting there in half an hour.

M  Well, I could take you, but the subway 
would be faster.

W  Oh, thanks. Where’s the subway?

M  It’s just behind that police office over 
there.

W  Thanks so much.

여  택시! 안녕하세요. Star 사무실 빌딩으로 가주세요. 

남 그건 도시의 다른 쪽에 있는데요.

여  거기서 30분 있다가 회의가 있거든요.

남  글쎄요, 태워다 드릴 수는 있지만, 지하철이 더 빠를 

텐데요.

여  오, 감사합니다. 지하철이 어디에 있지요?

남 저기 경찰서 바로 뒤에 있어요.

여  정말 고맙습니다.
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14

W Are you going home now?

M No. I have a few things to do first. 

W  Oh, yes. You have to pick up your sister. 
It’s her birthday.

M  And I have to buy a cake, and buy her a 
present.

W  Why not buy the cake next door? The 
bakery is really good.

M  Thanks. Before I pick her up, I’ll do that 
first. Then, I’ll buy her present.

15

W Good game, Max.

M  Thanks, Georgia. You’re a great tennis 
player.

W  You’re getting better. Can you play
tomorrow?

M  Sorry. I have a golf game. Do you play 
golf?

W  I’m just a beginner. I don’t play well.

M  I like to watch golf on TV. You can learn a 
lot.

W  I enjoy watching sports on TV, too. 

여 지금 집에 가니?

남 아니. 먼저 해야 할 일이 있어.

여  오, 그래. 너 네 여동생 데리러 가야 하지. 그녀의 생일이

잖아.

남 그리고 케이크도 사야 하고, 선물도 사야 해.

여  옆 건물에서 케이크를 사는 게 어때? 그 제과점 정말 좋아.

남  고마워. 그녀를 데리러 가기 전에 그걸 먼저 해야겠다. 

그러고 나서 그녀의 선물을 사야겠어.

여 좋은 경기였어, Max.

남 고마워, Georgia. 넌 훌륭한 테니스 선수야.

여 넌 점점 더 잘하는데. 내일도 칠래?

남 미안해. 난 골프 시합이 있어. 너 골프해?

여 난 이제 초보자야. 잘 못해. 

남  난 TV에서 골프 보는 것을 좋아해. 많이 배울 수 있어. 

여 나도 TV에서 스포츠 보는 거 좋아해.

16

M I have two pets. They are very active. 
They climb up and down a tree in their big 
cage. They are green, red and yellow. They 
sing a lot. I’m teaching them to talk. When I 
say “hello,” they say “hello,” too. When I say 
“pretty birds,” they say “pretty,” “pretty.” They 
are really clever.

17

W There are several famous women that I 
like. Yi So-Yeon was the first Korean woman 
to go into space. Kim Yu-Na is a figure 
skater. She won gold in the 2010 Winter 
Olympics. Also, I like Shin Ji-Yai. She is the 
number-one woman golfer in the world.

여 제가 좋아하는 몇몇 유명한 여성들이 있습니다. 이소연

은 우주에 간 최초의 한국 여성이었습니다. 김연아는 피겨 

스케이트 선수입니다. 그녀는 2010년 동계 올림픽에서 금메

달을 땄지요. 또한, 저는 신지애를 좋아합니다. 그녀는 세계 

제일의 여성 골프 선수입니다.

남 저는 두 마리의 애완동물을 가지고 있습니다. 그들은 매

우 활동적입니다. 그들은 큰 우리에 있는 나무에서 오르내립

니다. 그들은 초록색, 빨간색, 그리고 노란색이에요. 그들은 

노래를 많이 합니다. 전 그들에게 말하는 법을 가르치고 있

어요. 제가 “안녕”하고 말하면, 그들도 “안녕”하고 말합니다. 

제가 “예쁜 새들”이라고 말하면, 그들도 “예쁜,”“예쁜”하고 

말한답니다. 그들은 정말 똑똑해요. 
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19

W  Roger, are you going to the game 
tonight?

M No, I can’t.

W Why aren’t you going?

M  I got a C in history. Mr. Wilson gave me a 
special project.

W  Oh... I’m sorry.

M  My mom and dad said I can’t go out. And 
I have to finish the project tonight.

18

[The telephone rings.]

M Hello, Mimi? It’s Dave.

W Hi, Dave.

M What are you doing this weekend?

W Well, I’m going swimming on Saturday.

M  What about going to the zoo with me on 
Sunday?

W Oh, yeah. That would be lots of fun.

M  OK. Why not meet me at the subway at 
10:00 a.m.?

W Sure. See you on Sunday.

[전화벨 소리]

남 여보세요, Mimi? 나 Dave야.

여 안녕, Dave.

남 이번 주말에 뭘 할 거니?

여 글쎄, 토요일에는 수영하러 갈까 하는데.

남 나랑 일요일에 동물원에 가는 건 어때?

여 오, 그래. 아주 재미있겠다.

남 좋아. 오전 10시에 지하철에서 만나는 거 어때?

여 물론 좋지. 일요일에 봐. 

여 Roger, 오늘밤에 경기 보러 갈 거야?

남 아니, 난 못 가.

여 왜 안 가는데?

남  내가 역사에서 C를 받았거든. Wilson 선생님이 특별 

숙제를 내주셨어.

여 오… 안됐구나. 

남  우리 엄마와 아빠는 내가 외출할 수 없다고 하셨어. 

그리고 오늘밤에 그 숙제를 끝내야 해. 

20

W My mom and dad work hard. I wanted to 
do something nice for them on Parents’ Day. 
So I decided to make dinner for them. 
I made salad and spaghetti. I also put a 
flower on the table. When they got home, 
they were so surprised. They said they were 
very happy, and the food was excellent. 

여 저희 엄마와 아빠는 열심히 일하십니다. 저는 어버이날

에 그분들께 멋진 걸 해드리고 싶었습니다. 그래서 전 저녁

을 만들어 드리기로 결심했습니다. 전 샐러드와 스파게티를 

만들었습니다. 테이블에는 꽃도 꽂았습니다. 그분들이 집에 

오셨을 때, 정말 놀라셨습니다. 그분들은 정말 행복하다고, 

그리고 음식이 정말 훌륭하다고 말씀하셨습니다. 
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02

W I hate this weather.

M Me, too. It’s so windy. 

M Oh! Did you win yesterday?

M  Well, the game was cancelled because of 
the rain.

W  Oh, yeah. It rained from morning into the 
late evening.

M  Tomorrow is going to be nice and sunny 
though. 

여 난 이런 날씨 정말 싫어.

남  나도. 바람이 너무 부는구나. 

여 오! 어제 이겼니?

남  음, 비 때문에 경기는 취소되었어.

여 오, 그렇구나. 아침부터 저녁 늦게까지 비가 왔지.

남  하지만 내일은 날씨가 좋고 화창할거야. 

모의고사 3회 

01 ② 02 ① 03 ④ 04 ② 05 ② 06 ③ 07 ⑤ 08 ① 09 ①  10 ②

11 ④ 12 ③ 13 ⑤ 14 ② 15 ② 16 ② 17 ① 18 ③ 19 ④ 20 ⑤

01

M  Excuse me. Where can I mail this letter?

W There’s a post office just down this street.

M This street here?

W  Yes. It’s across from the City Bank. You 
can see the post office sign from here.

M  Oh, I see it. It’s beside the supermarket.

W That’s right.

남 실례합니다. 이 편지를 어디서 보낼 수 있을까요?

여 이 거리 바로 아래에 우체국이 있어요.

남 여기 이 거리요?

여  네. 그것은 City 은행 맞은편에 있어요. 여기서 우체국 

간판이 보이실 거에요.

남 오, 보여요. 그것은 슈퍼마켓 옆에 있네요.

여 맞아요.

04

M  Hey, Nina. What are you watching?

W Hi, Jordon. It’s American football. 

M  Who’s playing?

남 안녕, Nina. 뭘 보고 있니?

여 안녕, Jordon. 미식축구야.

남 누가 경기하고 있어?

03

W Did you see that?

M  Wow. I’m surprised. The bus driver didn’t 
stop.

W The bus is not even full. I can’t stand that.

M  Maybe he’s late.

W Well, now I’m going to be late for work.

여 저거 봤어?

남 와. 놀랐는걸. 버스 운전기사가 서지를 않았어. 

여 버스는 꽉 차 있지도 않았어. 참을 수가 없어.

남 아마도 그가 늦었나 보지.

여 음, 이제 나는 지각하게 될거야. 
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05

 W Sir, please have some bread.

M Thanks. It smells so good.

 W Our steak is really nice.

M  OK. I’ll have that. I’d like to have a salad, 
too, please.

 W Sure. How about a fruit salad?

M Yes, thanks. That would be fine.

06

M Let’s go for lunch on Sunday.

 W  Sorry. I have a sports club contest. We 
play soccer, basketball, and tennis.

M I’d love to watch.

 W  Basketball is at 8:00 a.m., and soccer is 
at 3:00 p.m.

M I can be there for soccer. 

 W  Maybe you can watch tennis, too. It’s at 
11:00 a.m. 

여 손님, 빵 좀 드셔 보세요. 

남 고마워요. 냄새가 정말 좋은데요.

여 저희 스테이크는 정말 훌륭합니다.

남 알겠어요. 그걸 먹을게요. 샐러드도 주세요. 

여 물론이지요. 과일 샐러드 어떠세요?

남 네, 고맙습니다. 그거 좋겠네요. 

남 일요일에 점심 먹으러 가자.

여  미안해. 난 스포츠 동아리 대회가 있어. 우리는 축구, 농

구, 그리고 테니스를 해.

남 정말 보고 싶다.

여 농구는 오전 8시야. 축구는 오후 3시이고.

남 축구는 보러 갈 수 있겠다.

여  아마 넌 테니스도 볼 수 있을 거야. 그건 오전 11시이

거든. 

W Dallas and Washington.

M  It looks difficult. Why are there so many 
players?

W  I’m not sure. Do you know what the rules 
are?

여 달라스랑 워싱턴.

남 어려워 보이는데. 왜 저렇게 선수들이 많은 거야?

여 잘 모르겠는데. 규칙이 뭔지 알아? 

07

W  What’s wrong? What are you looking for?

M  I put it in my bag, but it’s not here. I’m so 
upset.

W  What, your phone?

M  No, my phone is in my pocket. My wallet! 
I have $50 in there.

W  Oh, you mean this wallet? It was on the 
shelf here.

M Oh, thank you so much! 

여 무슨 일이니? 뭘 찾고 있어? 

남  그걸 내 가방에 넣었는데, 여기 없단 말이야. 정말 속상

하네.

여 뭐, 전화기?

남  아니, 내 전화는 주머니에 있어. 내 지갑 말이야! 거기 

50달러 들어 있는데.

여 오, 이 지갑 말하는 거야? 여기 선반 위에 있던데.

남 오, 정말 고마워!  

08

M Hi. Can I help you?

W  I need something to protect me from the 
sun.

남 안녕하세요. 도와드릴까요?

여 태양으로부터 보호할 것이 필요한데요.
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M How about this white sun umbrella?

W  No. I don’t want to carry it.

M  How about this yellow sun hat and these 
sunglasses?

W  Good idea, but I’ll take the pink hat, not 
the yellow one. 

M Would you like anything else? 

W  Yes. I’ll take some sun lotion and lip 
cream.

09

W I can’t wait to leave for my trip.

M Where are you going?

W I’m taking the bus from Busan to Seorak.

M  Wow! That will take a long time. Why not 
take the KTX train?

W  But the trip by bus is so beautiful. You can 
see many more things on the bus.

M  That’s true. You can see the sea along the 
way, too. 

남 이 하얀 양산은 어떠세요?

여 아뇨. 그걸 들고 다니고 싶지는 않아요.

남 이 노란 모자와 선글라스는 어떠세요?

여  좋은 생각이네요. 하지만 노란 모자 말고 분홍색 모자로 

할게요.

남 다른 것 또 필요하신가요?

여 네. 선 로션과 립 크림도 할게요.

여 빨리 여행을 떠나고 싶어.

남 어디로 가는데?

여 부산에서 설악까지 버스를 타고 갈 거야.

남  와! 그거 시간이 오래 걸리겠는데. KTX 기차를 타는 게 

어때?

여  하지만 버스 여행은 정말 아름다운걸. 버스에서 훨씬 더 

많은 것들을 볼 수 있어. 

남 그건 사실이야. 길을 따라 바다도 볼 수 있어. 

10

M Gemma, you’re all wet!

W  I was coming back from the library and it 
started raining really hard.

M  What? I have a baseball game this 
afternoon.

W  I think you should cancel it. It’s really bad 
weather. 

M  Yeah, good idea. I’d better call everyone 
right now.

W  Tomorrow is going to be nice.

M We’ll have the game tomorrow after lunch.

남 Gemma, 너 다 젖었잖아!

여 도서관에서 돌아오는데, 비가 정말 많이 오기 시작했어.

남 뭐? 난 오늘 오후에 야구 시합 있는데.

여 그거 취소해야 할 것 같다. 날씨가 정말 안좋아.

남  그래, 좋은 생각이다. 지금 당장 모두에게 전화하는 게 

좋겠다.

여 내일은 날씨가 좋을 거야.

남 우리는 내일 점심 먹고 시합을 할 수 있을거야. 

11

[The answering machine beeps.]

W  Hi, Emma. I’m so upset. I did poorly on 

my English and math exams. So my parents 
are trying to help me study more. For one 
month, I have to follow some rules. I have to 
come home right after school. I can’t watch 

[자동 응답기 소리]

여 안녕, Emma. 난 정말 속상해. 영어랑 수학 시험을 못 

봤거든. 그래서 우리 부모님은 내가 공부를 더 하게금 하셔. 

한 달 동안 난 규칙들을 따라야 해. 학교 끝나고서 바로 집에 

와야 하고. TV는 볼 수 없어. 인터넷은 사용할 수 있지만 하

루에 딱 한 시간 뿐이야. 컴퓨터나 휴대폰으로 게임도 할 수 
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TV. I can use the Internet, but only for an hour 
a day. I can’t play games on the computer or 
my cell phone. So I’m sorry, but I can’t see 
you on Thursday.

없어. 그래서 미안하지만 너를 목요일에 만날 수 없을 것 같아. 

12

W  Look at her dance. She’s amazing!

M She makes ballet look easy.

W  And listen to the music.

M  Yeah, the violins and the piano are 
wonderful.

W  That’s what I hope to be.

M A piano player?

W  No. I’d like to write music for orchestras. 

13

M Marie. Sorry, I’m late. 

W  That’s OK. Here’s the book I wrote. Can 
we meet on Friday to talk about it?

M Sure. How about 10:00 a.m.?

W I’ll be in class then. What about 12 noon?

M  Sorry. I have a lunch meeting. 3:00 p.m. is 
better.

W Yes, that’s perfect. Thanks, Ken. 

여  그녀가 춤추는 것을 봐. 굉장하다! 

남 그녀는 발레가 쉬워 보이게 만들어. 

여  그리고 음악을 들어봐.

남 그래. 바이올린과 피아노가 아주 멋지다.

여  그게 내가 되고 싶은 것이야.

남 피아노 연주자?

여  아니. 난 오케스트라를 위한 음악을 작곡하고 싶어. 

남 Marie. 늦어서 미안해.

여  괜찮아. 여기 내가 쓴 책이 있어. 그것에 대해 이야기하

게 금요일에 만날 수 있니? 

남 물론이지. 오전 10시 어때?

여 그 때엔 수업이 있을 거야. 정오 12시는 어때?

남 미안해. 점심 약속이 있어. 오후 3시가 더 낫겠는데.

여 그래, 아주 좋아. 고마워, Ken.

15

W  Hey, Toby. What are you doing on 
Saturday?

M  Maybe I’ll play basketball or soccer. What 
about you? 

W  I’m going to school to see Mr. Johnson. 
He will give a talk about different jobs. 

여 이봐, Toby. 토요일에 뭘 할 거니?

남 아마 농구나 축구를 하겠지. 넌? 

여  Johnson 선생님을 뵈러 학교에 가보려고. 여러 가지 

직업에 관해 말씀해 주실 거야.

14

M I really love this place. I love how it smells. 
Sometimes it smells like a bakery. Other 
times it smells like a fruit market. It’s a busy 
place all day. My mom is happy to welcome 
everyone. She cooks for her friends, my 
friends and my dad’s friends. It’s the best 
room in our house.

남 저는 정말 이 곳을 좋아합니다. 이 곳에서 나는 냄새도 

정말 좋아합니다. 가끔 이 곳에서는 제과점 냄새가 납니다. 

또 어떤 때에는 과일 시장 같은 냄새가 납니다. 이곳은 하루 

종일 바쁜 곳입니다. 저희 엄마는 기쁘게 모두를 환영해 주십

니다. 엄마는 그녀의 친구들, 제 친구들, 그리고 아빠의 친구

들을 위해 요리를 하십니다. 저희 집에서 최고의 공간이지요. 
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16

M  Look at all the wonderful paintings.

W This one looks like the one you have.

M  The one I have is a copy. This painting is 
the original.

W Your painting will be shown here one day.

M  I really hope to become a great painter.

W Oh, I love this one over here!

남  훌륭한 그림들 좀 봐.

여 이것은 네가 가지고 있는 것과 같아 보이는데.

남  내가 가지고 있는 건 복사본이야. 이 그림이 원본이지.

여 네 그림도 언젠가 여기 전시 될거야.

남  난 정말 훌륭한 화가가 되고 싶어.

여 오, 난 이쪽의 이 그림이 정말 좋다!

17

W How much is the bus to London?

M  The nonstop bus is $15. The bus that 
stops is $12.

W Oh. When does the next bus leave?

M  The next nonstop bus leaves in 
15 minutes. The other bus leaves in 30 
minutes.

W  I’ll take two nonstop bus tickets, please. 
Here’s $50.

여 런던 가는 버스는 얼마인가요?

남  직행 버스는 15달러입니다. 중간에 서는 버스는 12달러

이고요.

여 오. 다음 버스는 언제 떠나나요?

남  다음 직행 버스는 15분 후에 떠납니다. 또 다른 버스는 

30분 후에 떠나고요.

여 직행 버스 표 2장 부탁합니다. 여기 50달러요. 

M Do you want to get a job?

W  No, but I hope to be a doctor some day. 
So I want to learn more about it.

M  That’s a good idea. Can I go with you? It 
might help me decide what to study in the  
university.

W  Sure.

남 직업을 구하고 싶은거니?

여  아니. 하지만 언젠가 의사가 되고 싶거든. 그래서 그에 

대해 알아보고 싶어서.

남  좋은 생각이다. 나도 같이 가도 될까? 내가 대학에서 뭘 

공부할지 결정하는데 도움이 될지도 모르겠는데.

여 물론이지. 

18

① M Thanks! This is really pretty!

 W I’m glad you like it.

② M Hi, Jane. How’s your brother?

 W Oh, he’s fine. Thanks.

③ M How can I get to the bus station?

 W The bus leaves in 10 minutes.

④ M Do you want some cake? It’s so good.

 W No, thanks. I’m full.

⑤ M What does she look like?

 W  She has long brown hair and blue 
eyes.

① 남 고마워! 이거 정말 예쁘다!

 여 네가 좋다니 기쁘다. 

② 남 안녕, Jane. 네 남동생은 어떻게 지내니?

 여 오, 잘 지내. 고마워. 

③ 남 버스 역까지 어떻게 갈 수 있나요?

  여 10분 후에 버스가 떠나요.

④ 남 케이크 좀 먹을래? 정말 맛있는데.

  여 아니, 됐어. 배불러. 

⑤ 남 그녀는 어떻게 생겼어?

  여 갈색 머리에 파란 눈을 지녔어. 
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19

M   Oh, look! The zoo is having a walking tour.

W   Yeah. They’re going to show all the new 
baby animals.

M  That sounds like fun.

W   Plus you can eat at the restaurant for 40% 
off.

M Great! When is it?

W   Saturday from 10:00 a.m. to noon. Do you 
want to go?

20

M  This is a nice restaurant. The food is really 
good.

W  Yeah. The curried rice was delicious. 
Would you like some more?

M  No, thanks. But I feel like something 
sweet.

W  Oh, look at the dessert over there! That 
cake looks wonderful.

M  Let’s have some with our coffee. 

Question   What are they going to do now? 

남  오, 봐! 동물원에 도보 여행이 있어. 

여  그래. 새로 태어난 아기 동물들을 보여줄 거래.

남  재미있겠다.

여  게다가 레스토랑에서 40퍼센트 할인 가격으로 먹을 수 

있어.

남  정말 좋은데! 언제야?

여  토요일 오전 10시부터 정오까지. 가고 싶어? 

남 여기는 훌륭한 식당이야. 음식도 아주 훌륭해. 

여 그래. 카레 라이스가 맛있었어. 더 먹을래?

남 아니, 됐어. 하지만 뭔가 달콤한 걸 좀 먹고 싶다.

남  오, 저쪽에 디저트 좀 봐! 저 케이크 아주 맛있어 보이는

데. 

남 커피랑 같이 좀 먹자.

질문   그들은 이제 무엇을 할 것인가요? 


